CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
HONOLULU, HAWAII

Comprehensive

Annual
Financial
Report

FISCAL YEAR ENDED
June 30, 2004




JEREMY HARRIS, Mayor
City and County of Honolulu



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Prepared by:
DEPARTMENT OF BUDGET AND FISCAL SERVICES

IVAN M. LUI-KKWAN
DIRECTOR



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
Letter Of TraNSIILLAl. ...vvveveieiiniieriiereerrcirererenraeraserecssssssssassssersesnsosssssonserorsanarananns
GFOA Certificate of AChIEVEMENT.....vuverreniriereirierenrrertasrssstsinrrescrserseensesrerssssnsses
Organization CRart......c.uueviiriueeeiermeeiieiiiniiritiriierererieer st ereernarnessstsasesssienmasessens
Elected OffiCials......covuiiniiiiriuiiierrrierereeenreereeeueentassscsscsssaseosensensrasassansnsssassassonasse
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Report of Independent AUCIORS.............viviiiniiiniiiieniiiiieriiieirereceereeeeiiestieeniennnn
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)..........eeemumimmmiiiicicinenannne
Basic Fi ial

Government-wide Financial Statements

StaALEINIENT OF N B A SSELS. . eueuruerencrrnrsrecsenenssesrerssosssssssssnsnsnsararesssnsassssssnssssssses
StALEMENT OF A G VITIES. 1 evrreereeerereerreserecnsersescasseenrsersessssacasssasnsssrsssessssssassesses

Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet (including Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the
Staterment Of INEt ASSELS)....iveererreerrenererrecereresrassesisrscessrmisresessssssssnns
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances...............
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities...........ccc.coeeeeeenne.
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Statement of Net Assets — Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds.............
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds..........cccovvuuiiiiiiiiinniiininnnnnnnnn,
Statement of Cash Flows — Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds............
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Statement of Fiduciary Net ASSELS......cuveeurereerrmnrernerenseriencessimmieesernuerseens
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets........ccovcevreeiieireniiniiniinnenneannn,

Notes to the Financial StatemMeNts........ccocveieieirriereeriterenereerencenencrsessasenrasensraves



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&IA
Budgetary Comparison Schedules .
General FUNA....u.vueiiiiiii i e e e eterrer s ecteeteeerteesnenunsaressesrsssnnsnnsensesnsnnnns 85
HIighWay FUNd.....oorniriiieii ettt cre et cneraesnccnesnsenesnsnnsnsnssnnsnns 87
QOther Supplementary Information
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Combining Financial Statements:
Combining BalanCe SHEet.......vuuvrevriiireiieiriiriirrtrrrrreeriereeerreeeuernnenssncserarsnnenns 90
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance.... 96
Agency Funds - Combining Financial Statement:
Statement of Net Assets......cceevvevennenen eeeveu e eetarereteteatateearataraseseeaneneaeerearaes 104
Fund Schedules:
General Fund
Balance SREEt......ucvuieeiieieeeiiiieieeieireierneteerirenernsensraneennersesenesrsensancrnnnne 106
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance................ 107
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACTUAL.......ccuvieiiririrnriieiertieieireereeenteeeenernerncenrencenrnenneensnnss 108
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.......cccoevveiirvrieiieiriiiniinennennnnnnns 111
Highway Fund
3 F T T Y L=< SN 117
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and ACUAL......ccueinviriieiieeieiiriirrneirrierrrererererenerreeneeneenesns 118
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and AcCtUal.........ccoevvuvrienreniiiecinrenenrennennen 120
Highway Beautification and Disposal of Abandoned Vehicles Revolving Fund
3 E 1 F Y1 oI 1 LT O RPN 122
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACTUAL......ceveiiniinieieieieeiiereeerieiteieirincererteerereciernerseenns 123

Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.........ceueevenienienieniiniiiniinevnrennnn. 124



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):

Other Supplementary Information (Continued)
Fund Schedules (Continued):

Bikeway Fund

BalaNCe SHEOL....eerreeeinreerssrcrsssssessessessonssnssassnsssassnsasssessassasnssnsssassscnse

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and ACtUAL......ccuveveeemiriirmmiiirinieiiiieieniinrieie et snane
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual..........coevviiieiieieninneniiiinnnninen,

Parks and Playground Fund

BalaNiCE SHEEOL. . eeeenenvneneneisssessansenssssssrsssesssnasssncnssnsnssssossasssssssasasassssnse

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and ACtUal........ccoceerviiiiiririirmiimiiiineeeeeniinnien e
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual..........coeoevuiriiimnvenirininenennnens

Federal Revenue Sharing Fund

BalanCe SHEOL. . cuveereenerirrnrerecesencncorsoussrsnsonnsesnsssesscsssssresnsssorsransssasnsnace

Liquor Commission Fund

BalaNCe SHEOL. . veveenreineneeereresesesesnssssssscssracrssssssssrnrsssssesnsnssssosssassnssessne

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and ACtUAL.........ueeerreemmeerriiimmmiririmiiniieriierrrereceiaseneraaaess
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.......ccccevvnreniininenviininienniann

Rental Assistance Fund

BalaNCE SHEEL. . eurneeinrenrnenenecsosecsesesssrsenssnsasasserrensenrssessssnsassossessssasssnnons

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and ACtUAL.......cuuueeereirriiemiriiiiiriniereertinere e e e
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........cccoevvrurieiiniiiiiiiniieneannn.

Zoo Animal Purchase Fund

BalaniCe SHEEL...uerineeerieenrersresseusncrsessressssssssssssssasacncnsrsnsasansasssessssssassns

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget and AcCtUal.........u.evvveeiiiieniriiininiiniiiiinerinceiiieeaererseeanseeens
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........cccoevvvuiniiniinnencicnnnennnnn.



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):
Other Supplementary Information (Continued)
Fund Schedules (Continued):
Hanauma Bay Nature Preserve Fund
BalaNCe SHEOL. . ueveeeeerereeeneernrrnesreesssssscessssnssrsnsssassrassrsossnsstnnonsnasssssssssass
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACTUAL .....eeereeuriiiieriaiireresiccesits e
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........covovveereriniiiiiiniinnnninennieenne.
Special Reserve Fund
BalANCE SHEOL. . .uuerenererererenseeeranrersrassssossssrseserssssesanssssssscnrssssnnsresnnsossssssnse
Community Development Fund
Balance SREEL. ... eeeueeeeenerenrerernnreresensssessorrsssarsnsesesesssssstssnsosssssannasssscassss
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACHUAL.....c.cormmreirnimmnereennenerereriinnnnniitaes it
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........coovveivieoriinniniiiininiiinnie,
Golf Fund
BalanCe SHEEL....ueenrenerreiuirerrnererereesensessernosssonsssnonnsssssssssssrssanssrnssesssossens
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and AcCtUAl......ccoviumirieiirieniiririieitine e
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........c.coevvienmiiiniiiiniiniiniiiine.
Special Events Fund
BalanCe SHEEL...eeunereerrnereneerrerrreereressnssssseesssrsrsssnnesssssessenssrsscsassersnsannssses
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and ACTUAL......ceerrreruiirieriiiirinnerieeiecetetisnrniatassre s
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.........ccocevviiriniiiiniiniinniinn
Farmers Home Administration Loan Fund

BalaNCe SHEEL. .. enneveerenereneernseereeerneassnasenssssssosssosssenssarsrsnsssesssessssasssssssans



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued): :
Other Supplementary Information (Continued)
Fund Schedules (Continued):
Special Projects Fund
Balance ShEEL......veueivererreeiereeteeereneeraresrensesesernesessssasssenssescseroossssesnsorsans 160
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACtUAL.......ccvuueerirrereniiiinrirniiciitimeierieesreeraesnesereeseseenaes 161
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.......cccccvvevrennieiiiniinininneiiiniienennn. 162
Federal Grants Fund
BalancCe SREEL......ccuuveuerrriererenerrierunreresreseneransenesserassesssassensesssrosassensasnssnns 163
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and ACTUAL ........cuvureeeneerienniieeeiiimiiereetiriireresiereiierseniessenaseeene 164
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and AcCtual.......cccceeeeruireiinieniiiiiiininnnennennn. 166
Housing and Community Development Rehabilitation Loan Fund
Balance SREEL.....eenieiieeeeeiiirieriirtrereueenesnerreeasresnsearessessnsansaseresersresnsenssnsen 168
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual......ccoiveriirremnirrniiiiiiiiiie s e n e 169
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual........c.cceveeviviriniiiinieiinicnnennnee. 170
Pauahi Project Expenditures, Hawaii R-15 Fund
BalanCe SREEL.....coeuvvunieniiriernernnrenerterriateseneenscnesassosssssssossnsssosessrascaronneess 171
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACtUAL.........ccuiveruirrineeiiinierencrieisremiiireniraisierneeeesieeennnes 172
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.........ceeeiiniiiincreniiioniecinieniecinn 173
Housing and Community Development Section 8 Contract Fund
Balance SREOL.....vueeieniiieiirireiiiirreeerntenerrerasnreesrsensrssassasassassassassansassasenss 174
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and ACTUAL......ccuuiiniieiiiieiiieiririiinniiireciciceieesi i eaeeaeanes 175
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and ACtual........c.ecvvveurivininiencinniininieninnenne 176



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):
Other Supplementary Information (Continued)

Fund Schedules (Continued):

Leasehold Conversion Fund

BalanCe SNEEL. ..euivieieieiiiiririieiinrireuraeesenracarenrnrasesssansensssesensussosnsassnssssense
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and ACtUAL......cceeuriererenieeiererreerinsreniriseaiserisraereasseassersssenes
Schedule of Revenues — Budget and Actual.........ccovenenieiiiiiiieiiiinneeinionn.

Revolving Funds

Combining Balance SHEet......c.ccevueeenciieiieiiiireiiiiiiriiiicrcreraseeaesaeens
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..

General Obligation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund

BAlANCE SHEEL...veenvveerreeeeeererreessseeessseeearneeeansesssssesessesosssesssessssresssesssens
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

Improvement District Bond and Interest Redemption Fund

Balance SHEEL. .. veiieiieeeiiiiiiirieiiiieireeesareseerssanerenrasusssrasrassasssnsasassnsnnnnsnss
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

General Improvement Bond Fund

BalanCe SREEL....c.u.vvuieriirniriieeeieiererreerurenienetesraeennssnssessrasssssnncssssssssnssroses
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

Highway Improvement Bond Fund

Balance SREEL......cuiunieiiiriiereeerirenreereeernesrereeesnrerensencnssansrnsnennsansnnsnnrans
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

Federal Grants Capital Projects Fund

Balance SNEEL......cvuueieeiiiieitietneireeeiieeueernereneeenrenesrnssssesessnsrannsennsssssssnsss
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

vi

177

178
179

180
181

182
183

184
185

186
187

188
189

190



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued):
Other Supplementary Information (Continued)
Fund Schedules (Continued):
Capital Projects Fund

Balance SHEet......vevvuernrrnenrenrenrnerncererreraeruersrsnsenssnsssrassosancessassassassossasess
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance..................

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited):

General Governmental Expenditures by Function (Table 1)....ccccevviriievenviciinninnrnnnenn.
General Governmental Revenues by Source (Table 2)....c.euviueiieiiiiiiirreniricinerciecinnes
Tax Revenues by SoUrce (Table 3).u.cuiurieiiiuiieiiiiiireireiceereeceeceeseasenssnseessserasnes
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property (Table 4).....ccceevvevncrnnrnneeen.
Property Tax Levies and Collections (Table 5).....cccevuereeiriiciiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiineininn.
Real Property Assessed Values by Classification and Tax Rates (Table 6)......................
Special Assessment Collections (Table 7)....ccceveiriiimireircrmiiiiiiiiii e
Ratio of Direct Bonded Debt (Table 8)...cuvuniiriiiiiiriiiiiiriiienienriirneererirreecncsncesennenes
Computation of Legal Debt Margin (Table @)....ccevereneriecirimiiiiniiiiireiiiniiinieans
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt (Table 10).......cuucveeriiiieiiirrieeinenerrnneenne
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt to

Total General Governmental Expenditures (Table 11)....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniecennes
Schedule of Revenue Bond Coverage (Table 12)..cccveviuiriiviiiiiieciiiiiiricnncecnceesneeenes
Demographic Statistics (Table 13)...cuuieuririeriirrincrrrernierieietriessiesrenestsiseemeriesianes
Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits (Table 14).......cccccvvvvevirvvinrinniinnnnnns
Principal Taxpayers (Table 15) ...ttt creenesrasn e seesnnssases
Miscellaneous Statistical Data (Table 16)....cuvunveinieiiiiiiiiiiiirricrcreirererenaerreneanecneaenns

vii



This page left blank intentionally.

viii



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



DEPARTMENT OF BUDGET AND FISCAL SERVICES

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
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DIRECTOR

JEREMY HARRIS
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DEPUTY DIRECTOR

December 30, 2004

Honorable Mayor Jeremy Harris
Honorable Donovan Dela Cruz, Chair
and Presiding Officer and
Members of the City Council
City and County of Honolulu
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Dear Mayor and Members of the City Council:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of
the City and County of Honolulu (City), State of Hawaii, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004. This report was prepared by the Department of Budget and Fiscal Services, which is
responsible for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures. We believe the data, as presented, are
accurate in all material aspects and presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the
financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity
of its various funds, and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

The CAFR represents the culmination of all budgeting and accounting activities engaged in
by management during the year, covering all funds of the City, its component units and its
financial statements. The CAFR is organized into three sections:

e The Introductory Section is intended to familiarize the reader with the
organizational structure of the City, the nature and scope of the services it provides,
and specifics of its legal operating environment. This section is composed of this
transmittal letter, the City government's organization chart and a list of elected
officials.

e The Financial Section includes the audited basic financial statements, disclosure
notes, required supplementary information, supporting statements and schedules
necessary to fairly present the financial position and the results of operations of the
City in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the independent
auditor’s report on the basic financial statements, and the management’s discussion
and analysis (MD&A).



¢ The Statistical Section contains comprehensive statistical data on the City’s financial,
physical, economic, social and political characteristics.

REPORTING ENTITY

This report presents the financial status of the City (the primary government) and its
discretely presented component unit, the Board of Water Supply (BWS). In other words,
the financial information for the BWS is reported in a separate column in the government-
wide financial statements to emphasize the legal separation from the primary government
and to differentiate its financial position and results of operations from those of the primary
government.

The City provides the full range of municipal services required by the Constitution of the
State of Hawaii, the Hawaii Revised Statutes, the Revised Charter of the City and County
of Honolulu, and the Revised Ordinances of Honolulu. The services include police and fire
protection, emergency medical care services, culture and recreation, planning, zoning and
permitting, sewage and solid waste collection and disposal, public mass transportation,
human services, traffic safety and control, and construction and maintenance of public
streets, roads, bridges, walkways, and drainage and flood control systems for the island of
Oahu.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The performance of the local economy has been quite favorable due in part to steady
domestic visitor growth, an increase in Japanese tourists arrivals, a booming construction
industry, and sizzling home sales. Although Honolulu’s future economic outlook is
dependent on the rate of economic expansion in the mainland U.S. and Japan, economic
indicators are optimistic.

e The island’s main industry, tourism, is experiencing continued growth. Hotel
occupancy increased 2.5% to 85%, average daily room rates rose 7.6% to
$128.69 and room revenue per available room jumped 10.9% to $109.39 for
August 2004 in comparison to the same month the year earlier. Comparisons of
statistics for the year-to-date period through August 2004 and 2003 are generally
positive: hotel occupancy, room rates and room revenue rose 8.2%, 6.5% and
18.5%, respectively. International arrivals surged 15.9% for the eight months
ended August 31, 2004 in comparison to the same period the year earlier
primarily due to the rebound of the Japanese market with the long-awaited
improvement in Japan’s economy. However, international length of stay decreased

" 1.5%. Similarly, domestic visitor arrivals grew 7% while domestic length of stay
slipped a modest 0.8% during the same period.

e Retailing receipts on Oahu increased 5.6% to $16.6 billion for fiscal year 2004
compared to the last fiscal year, but declined 16% to $1 billion for the month
ended July 31, 2004 as compared to the same month in 2003.



e Along with the impact of military construction and the growth of private building
permits, building activity on Oahu is robust. The number of building permits
amounted to 24,177 with an estimated value of $2.1 billion for fiscal year 2004
in comparison to 21,266 permits valued at $1.9 billion for the prior fiscal year,
representing increases of 13.7% in number and 10.5% in value. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2004, a total of 12,209 permits were issued at a
value of $1.1 billion, representing an increase of 4% in number and 1.5% in value
as compared to the same period last year. On the other hand, contracting receipts
dipped a slight 2.9% from $3.5 billion for the last fiscal year to $3.4 billion for
fiscal year 2004. Likewise, contracting receipts slipped 5.3% from $277 million
for the one month ended July 31, 2003 to $262.2 million for the same month
this year.

o With interest rates still at affordable levels, sales of homes on Oahu continue to be
strong. Total residential resales climbed 34.2% to $3.4 billion for the first nine
months of 2004 compared to the same period in 2003. Sales volume on a year-
to-date basis through September grew 15.6% representing 5,894 condominiums
and 5.3% for 3,468 single-family homes. The median resale price for
condominiums reached a record-high of $219,000 in September 2004 in contrast
to $180,000 the previous September, representing an increase of 21.7%.
Likewise, the median resale price for single-family homes jumped 20.3% in
September 2004 to $475,000 compared to $395,000 for the prior fiscal year.

With a healthy tourism industry, a strong construction trade and a robust home sale
market, the local economy has rebounded from the short-term setbacks of the September
11, 2001 attack on America, the scare from the severe acute respiratory syndrome
(SARS) and the war in Iraq. It is hoped that sustained growth will continue in the local
economy despite these times of global uncertainties.

Sources:

City and County of Honolulu, Department of Planning and Permitting, “Monthly Bulletin — Building Permits,”
http://www.honoluludpp.org/calendar.

Honolulu Board of Realtors, http://www.hicentral.com/press.

Laney, Dr. Leroy O., First Hawaiian Bank, “Economic Forecast,” 2004-2005 Edition.

State of Hawaii, Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism, http://www2.hawaii.gov/DBEDT.

State of Hawaii, Department of Taxation, http://www.state.hi.us/tax/txcolrptarchive.html.

University of Hawaii Economic Research Organization, http://www.uhero.hawaii.edu.




MAJOR INITIATIVES CAPITAL PROGRAM

The City demonstrated fiscal restraint in developing the fiscal year 2004 capital budget
which amounted to $276.8 million, a 39.2% decrease in comparison to the previous fiscal
year. The capital improvement budget was drafted with the cooperation of community
vision teams and neighborhood boards. To invest in the future and improve the quality of
life for residents and visitors, the capital budget focused on wastewater collection and
treatment systems, road resurfacing and human services.

General Government

The capital improvement budget of $27.3 million for the general government function
reflected a 25.2% decline over the prior year. The following were the major general
government  projects: Procurement of Major Equipment ($12 million),
Telecommunications Project ($2.5 million) and Halawa Corporation Yard ($2.3 million).

Public Safety

In contrast to $31.2 million for the previous year, public safety appropriations in the
capital improvement budget totaled $23.4 million in fiscal year 2004. The major public
safety projects included the East Honolulu Police District Station ($5.5 million), the
Computerized Traffic Control System ($2.4 million) and Kawa Stream Improvements
($1.9 million).

Highways and Streets

$66.7 million is designated in the capital improvement budget for highways and streets, an
increase of 13.5% compared to the last fiscal year. Major highways and streets projects
included Rehabilitation of Streets and Parking Lots ($30.7 million), Curb Ramps at Various
Locations ($13.7 million), Street Improvements ($3.6 million), Sidewalk Improvements
($3.4 million) and Bridge Rehabilitation at Various Locations ($3 million).

Sanitation

In the capital improvement budget, $73 million was provided for wastewater projects,
representing a decrease of 52.9% over the prior year. The following were the major sewer
projects for fiscal year 2004: Honouliuli Wastewater Treatment Plant Solids Handling
System ($21 million), Kalaheo Avenue Reconstructed Sewer ($17.7 million), Project
Management for Wastewater Projects ($5.6 million), Wastewater Equipment ($4 million),
Kaneohe/ Kamehameha Highway Reconstructed Sewer ($3.3 million), Nimitz Highway
Sewer Reconstruction at Oahu Community Correctional Center ($3.2 million), Small
Sewer Mainline and Lateral Projects ($3 million) and Wastewater Facilities Replacement
Reserve ($3 million).

Human Services

The City designated $23.9 million in the capital improvement budget for human services,
31.9% more than the previous year. The major human services projects included the
Transitional Residential Center ($6 million), Palolo Chinese Home — Food Service Complex
($1.9 million) and Housing Partnership Program ($1.9 million).



Culture-Recreation

For participant, spectator and other recreation projects, $41.4 million was appropriated in
the capital improvement budget, 49.8% less than the year earlier. Major projects included
Renovate Recreational Facilities ($4 million), Reconstruct Wastewater Systems for Parks
($2.5 million) and Honolulu Zoo Front Entrance Improvements ($2.4 million).

Transportation

The capital improvement budget appropriations of $20.7 million for mass transit
represented a 66.5% drop compared to the previous year. Major public transit projects
include the Bus and Handi-Van Acquisition Program ($13.8 million), Middle Street Transit
Center ($2.5 million) and Bus Stop Site Improvements ($2.3 million).

For the Future

The City's capital improvement budget of $298.3 million for fiscal year 2005 represents
an increase of 7.7% compared to the previous year. The increase is primarily due to an
emphasis on upgrading infrastructure such as wastewater collection and treatment systems,
streets, parking lots, sidewalks and curbs. In addition, the capital improvement budget has
a focus on human services and public safety.

General Government

The capital improvement budget totaling $27.2 million for the general government
function reflected a slight decrease in comparison to the prior year. The following are the
major general government projects: Procurement of Major Equipment ($8.2 million),
Energy Conservation Improvements and Solar Energy Initiatives ($7.9 million) and Public
Building Facilities Improvements ($2.3 million).

Public Safety

In contrast to $23.4 million for the previous year, public safety appropriations in the
capital improvement budget rose slightly to $27.4 million for fiscal year 2005. The major
public safety projects include McCully Fire Station Replacement ($3.9 million), Honolulu
Police Department Equipment Acquisition ($2.7 million) and Rockfall Potential and Other
Earth Stability Hazard Inspections and Mitigative Improvements ($2.4 million).

Highways and Streets

$56.9 million is designated in the capital improvement budget for highways and streets in
fiscal year 2005, compared to $66.7 million for the last fiscal year. Major highways and
streets projects include Street and Parking Lot Improvements ($40 million), Sidewalk
Improvements ($3.8 million) and Curb Ramps at Various Locations ($3.6 million).

Sanitation

In the capital improvement budget, $120.8 million has been provided for wastewater
projects, representing an increase of 65.5% over the prior year. The following are the
major sewer projects for fiscal year 2005: Sand Island Wastewater Treatment Plant
Expansion, Primary Treatment ($52.3 million), Honouliuli Wastewater Treatment Plant
Solids Handling System ($16 million), Sand Island Wastewater Treatment Plant, Unit 1,



Phase 2A - Headworks ($8.7 million), Project Management for Wastewater Projects
($5.2 million), Sand Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Disinfection Facility and Effluent
Pump Station ($4.5 million), Sand Island Wastewater Treatment Plant Construction Soil
Management ($4.5 million) and Wastewater Equipment ($4 million).

Human Services

The City has designated $29.3 million in the capital improvement budget for human
services, 22.4% more than the previous year. The major human services projects include
Hawaii Housing Development Corporation - Tusitala Vista ($2.9 million), ORI, Anuenue
Hale, Inc. - Facility ($2.5 million) and Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS —
HOPWA ($2 million).

Culture-Recreation

For participant, spectator and other recreation projects, $20.6 million is appropriated in
the capital improvement budget, 50.3% less than the year earlier. Major projects include
Honolulu Zoo - Discovery Zone Center ($2 million), Reconstruct Wastewater Systems for
Parks ($1.7 million), Maunalani Community Park ($1 million), Oahu Parks and Playground
Improvements ($1 million) and Pupukea Paumalu Nature Preserve ($1 million).

Transportation

The capital improvement budget appropriations of $12.7 million for mass transit represent
a 38.9% drop compared to the previous year. Major public transit projects include the
Bus and Handi-Van Acquisition Program ($6.4 million), Wahiawa Transit Center ($2
million), Middle Street Intermodal Center ($1.6 million) and Dillingham Boulevard Transit
Improvements ($1.3 million).

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Basic Financial Statements include two government-wide financial statements, the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. The government-wide financial
statements present the City’s financial statements in a more corporate style, e.g., by
reporting depreciation and long-term debt. Additionally, the government-wide financial
statements provide a big picture view of the City’s financial condition and position.

The government-wide financial statements for the primary government are summarized and
reported by governmental activities and business-type activities. The City’s business-type
activities are consolidated into a single column of the government-wide financial statements
and include the proprietary funds of the primary government, specifically, housing, sewer,
solid waste and the public transportation system.

The following is a brief description of the City’s proprietary funds:
¢ The Housing Development Special Fund accounts for monies designated for the
development of housing for sale or rental by the City.

e The Sewer Fund accounts for all monies received pursuant to provisions of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act amendments of 1972 and the Hawaii Revised
Statutes and expended for the purposes authorized.



o The Solid Waste Special Fund accounts for all revenues derived from the operations
of the City’s Refuse Division, solid waste disposal program, glass recycling program
and other recycling programs. All monies placed in this fund are maintained in
separate accounts identified with and expended for the intended purposes.

¢ The Public Transportation System was created for the management, operation and
maintenance of the bus transportation system including the City bus system
(TheBus) and the special transit service (The Handi-Van).

The financial information of the City (known as the primary government) and its
component unit, the Board of Water Supply (BWS), are reported separately in the
government-wide financial statements.

Another element of the Basic Financial Statements is the fund financial statements. These
statements are designed to address the major individual funds by category (governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary).

Financial analysis of the primary government is provided in the MD&A section of this
report.

Internal Controls

Establishing and maintaining the internal control system is the responsibility of City
managers. Creating the internal control system requires estimates and judgments to assess
the expected benefits and related costs of control procedures. The objective of an internal
control system is to provide management with reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and transactions are executed
in accordance with management's authorization and are properly recorded to permit the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Management must also develop adequate internal controls to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to federal and State financial assistance programs.

The internal control system is subject to periodic evaluation by the City's internal audit
staff. We believe the City's internal controls adequately safeguard assets and provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary Controls

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure that legal provisions of the annual budget
are complied with and that expenditures do not exceed budgeted amounts. Controls are
exercised by integrating the budgetary accounts in fund ledgers for all budgeted funds. An
encumbrance system is also used to account for purchase orders and other contractual
commitments. Encumbered balances of appropriations at year-end are reported as
reservations of fund balance and are not reappropriated in the following year's budget.




Cash Management

The primary objectives of the City’s cash management and investment program are the
safety and preservation of principal, liquidity and yield. The City takes full advantage of
temporarily idle cash and the scheduling of vendor payments. To ensure the most
competitive rates on investments, the cash resources of the individual funds are combined
to form a pool of cash and investments. The investment pool’s portfolio is composed of
obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, repurchase agreements fully
collateralized by obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies, and time certificates of
deposit.

The average ratio of invested funds to available cash during the year was 89.2%. The City
earned interest income during the year at an average rate of return of 0.98%.

Risk Management

The risk management function was established under Section 2-5 of the Revised
Ordinances of Honolulu requiring the creation of a risk management program to identify
and control the City’s exposures to liability. The program covers all City departments and
agencies except the Board of Water Supply and Oahu Transit Services. Risk management
activities focus on risk financing programs, claims management, loss prevention and other
areas to minimize the adverse financial impacts of losses.

The City relies on a combination of commercial insurance and self-insurance to finance risk.
Commercial insurance is purchased to cover aircraft, medical liabilities, and real and
personal property the City owns or controls. Also, automobile liability insurance is
purchased to cover privately owned police vehicles in conformity with a labor contract
agreement. For workers’ compensation and automobile liabilities, the City qualifies as a
self-insurer in accordance with the applicable Hawaii Revised Statutes. With all other risks,
the City has elected to self-insure.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

Section 3-114 of the City Charter requires an annual financial audit by independent
certified public accountants. The accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was
selected by City Council to perform the audit. The auditor's report is included in the
financial section of this report. Deloitte & Touche LLP was selected by the Board of
Directors of the Board of Water Supply for the audit of its financial statements.

Awards ‘

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City and
County of Honolulu for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003. The City has received the award in 17 of the last 18 years. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR. The report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.



In addition, the City received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its
annual budget document for the past 5 years. To qualify for the award, the government
must publish a budget document that meets program criteria as a policy document, a
financial plan and a communications device.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

ELECTED OFFICIALS

EXECUTIVE BRANCH
(2001-2004)

Mayor.....ccoevvncerierninnnnene Jeremy Harris

Prosecuting Attorney......Peter Carlisle

In the general election on November 2, 2004, Mufi Hannemann was elected Mayor for a
four-year term commencing January 2, 2005.

Peter Carlisle was re-elected to another four-year term as Prosecuting Attorney in the

primary election on September 18, 2004.

CITY COUNCIL

Council District

Councilmember

First
Second
Third
Fourth
Fifth
Sixth
Seventh
Eighth
Ninth

Mike Gabbard
Donovan Dela Cruz
Barbara Marshall
Charles Djou

Ann Kobayashi
Rod Tam

Romy Cachola
Gary Okino

Nestor Garcia

The staggered terms of Councilmembers elected in November 2002 commenced on January
2, 2003. Councilmembers of odd-numbered districts were elected to two-year terms while
Councilmembers of even-numbered districts were elected to four-year terms.

As a result of primary elections in September 2004, Councilmembers of odd-numbered
districts were elected to four-year terms commencing on January 2, 2005. Todd Apo was
elected to represent the first district, and incumbents were re-elected in the third, fifth,

seventh, and ninth districts.
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LEGISLATIVE BRANCH
City Council

Donovan M. Dela Cruz Romy M. Cachola Charles K. Djou
Chair, District 1l Councilmember, District VI Councilmember, District IV

Mike Gabbard | Nestor ria Ann H. Kobayashi

Councilmember, District | Councilmember, District [X Councilmember, District V

Barbara Marshall Gry H. Okin B Roney Tam

Councilmember, District Ill Councilmember, District VIII Councilmember, District VI
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
First Hawaiian Center

999 Bishop Street, Suite 1900
Honolulu Hi 96813

Telephone (808) 531 3400
Facsimile (808) 531 3433

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Chair and Members of the City Council
City and County of Honolulu
Honolulu, Hawaii '

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City and County of Honolulu, State of Hawaii (“City”), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2004, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City and County of Honolulu’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Board of Water Supply, which is the
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the Board of Water Supply, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and
the report of other auditors provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City and County of
Honolulu, State of Hawaii, as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 23, 2004 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 17
through 32 and 85 through 88 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City and County of Honolulu’s basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents
under other supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents under other supplementary
information have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections as listed in
the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

PriciddGrh sarQoopes L

Honolulu, Hawaii
December 23, 2004
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to provide an overview of
the financial performance of the City and County of Honolulu for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004. The information presented in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the letter
of transmittal in the Introductory Section of this report and the financial statements that follow this
subsection.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2004

o For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, taxes and other revenues for governmental
programs totaled $891.7 million while expenses amounted to $844.8 million (before
transfers), representing an improvement in comparison to last fiscal year when expenses
exceeded revenues by $12.3 million.

o With the City’s business-type activities, revenues increased from $312.7 million for fiscal year
2003 to $339.3 million during fiscal year 2004 while expenses decreased from $444.9
million in the prior fiscal year to $426.8 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

o As of the close of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending
fund balance of $168.9 million, compared to $130.3 million the year before. The change
in fund balance is detailed further on page 28.

o Total fund balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2004 decreased by $10.5 million to
$62.3 million. Likewise, unreserved fund balance in the General Fund declined by $10
million to $41.5 million at the end of the 2004 fiscal year.

« The capital assets for the governmental activities amounted to $1.7 billion at the close of the
2004 and 2003 fiscal years.

« The City’s net debt applicable to the legal debt margin of $11.9 billion was $1.5 billion for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This MD&A serves as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund

financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to the private sector. Accordingly, it provides both long-term and
short-term information about the City’s financial status.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
serve as an indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents how the City's net assets changed during the fiscal year.
Revenues and expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing
of the related cash flows. As such, the statement includes information for some items that will result
in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that recover all or a significant portion of its costs through user fees or charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety,
highways and streets, sanitation, human services, culture and recreation, and utilities. The business—
type activities of the City include four enterprises: housing, sewer, solid waste and public
transportation. The governmental activities and the business-type activities comprise the City’s
primary government.

The City’s government-wide financial statements include separate component unit reporting for the
semi-autonomous operations of the Board of Water Supply. The focus of the government-wide
statements is clearly on the primary government although the presentation allows the user to address
the relative relationship with the component unit. Complete financial statements of the Board of
Water Supply, which include its MD&A, may be obtained from the Board of Water Supply at 630
South Beretania Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96843.

Fund Financial Statements .

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments,
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on short-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's short-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's short-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains 30 governmental funds, each individually categorized as major or non-major. The
General Fund is always classified as a major fund. Other major funds consist of the Highway Fund,
and the General Obligation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund. A fund is considered major if its
revenues, expenditures, assets, or liabilities is at least 10% of corresponding totals for all
governmental funds and at least 5% of the aggregate amount for all governmental and enterprise
funds for the same item. Even though the General Improvement Bond Fund did not meet the
qualifying criteria for a major fund in fiscal year 2004, the City chose to present it separately like the
other major funds in the Balance Sheet and in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances for Governmental Funds. Information for the other 26 funds are included in the
nonmajor category and are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for Governmental Funds.
Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the form of
combining statements in this report.

Proprietary Funds. Enterprise services for which the City charges fees to customers are reported as
proprietary funds. Like the government-wide financial statements, the proprietary fund statements
report long-term and short-term financial information. The Statement of Cash Flows for the
proprietary funds presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting from operating, financing
and investing activities; cash receipts and cash disbursements are reported without consideration of
the earnings event, when an obligation arises, and excluding depreciation of capital assets.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the Financial Section of this
report presents certain required supplementary information. The combining statements referred to
earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the
required supplementary information. The individual fund statements and schedules can be found
following the combining statements of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (GOVERNMENT-WIDE)

Statement of Net Assets

As noted eatlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City's financial position.
Excluding its component unit, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $1 billion in contrast to $1.1
billion at the end of last fiscal year.

The largest portion of the primary government’s net assets (94.5% and 91.5% at the end of fiscal
years 2004 and 2003, respectively) is reflected as invested in capital assets (i.e., land, construction
work in progress, buildings and improvements, equipment and machinery, and infrastructure) less any
related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

Approximately $32.6 million and $68.2 million of the net assets for the primary government were
unrestricted at June 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. For the City’s governmental activities, the
unrestricted net assets of $84.8 million at the end of fiscal year 2004 may be used to meet the
City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. With regard to the City’s business-type activities,
the unrestricted net assets amounted to a deficit of $52.2 million at June 30, 2004 which was
attributable to losses from operations after transfers and contributions, acquisition of capital assets,
debt service payments and an increase in debt service reserves. A small percentage (2.3%) of the
City’s net assets at June 30, 2004 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
how they may be used.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of the Statement of Net Assets with comparative data of the prior year:

Summary Statement of Net Assets

(Amounts in Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activitles Primary Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Current and other assets $ 297.2 $ 2336 $ 2419 $ 376.6 539.1 $ 610.2
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,732.6 1,655.6 1,793.4 1,710.1 3,526.0 3,365.7
Total assets 2,029.8 1,889.2 2,035.3 2,086.7 4,065.1 3,975.9
Noncurrent fiablilities 1,678.0 1,535.5 1,231.8 1,256.8 2,909.8 2,792.3
Other liabilities 54.9 42.1 85.2 85.7 140.1 127.8
Total liabilities 1,732.9  1,577.6 1,317.0 1,342.5 3,049.9 2,920.1
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 2111 262.8 747.9 702.8 959.0 965.6
Restricted 1.0 1.4 22.6 20.6 23.6 22.0
Unrestricted 84.8 47.4 (52.2) 20.8 32.6 68.2
Total net assets $ 2969 $ 3116 $ 7183 $ 7442 $ 1,015.2 $1,055.8
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following are the key elements of the changes in the City’s net assets for fiscal years 2004 and
2003:

Changes in Net Assets
(Amounts in Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Actlvitles Actlvities Primary Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 140.4 ¢ 1250 $ 2526 $ 2545 $ 393.0 $ 3795
Operating grants and contributions 93.6 85.5 - - 93.6 85.5
Capital grants and contributions 67.7 33.8 75.7 45.2 143.4 79.0
General revenues:
Property taxes 439.0 385.1 - - 439.0 385.1
Other taxes 98.9 94.4 - - 98.9 94.4
Other 52.1 73.6 11.0 13.0 63.1 86.6
Total revenues 891.7 797.4 339.3 312.7 1,231.0 1,110.1
Expenses
General government 147.3 148.4 - - 147.3 148.4
Public safety 259.1 264.4 - - 259.1 264.4
Highways and streets 19.7 45.0 - - 19.7 45.0
Sanitation 0.7 0.6 . - 0.7 0.6
Human services 70.2 74.5 - ~ 70.2 74.5
Culture and recreation 61.2 68.3 - - 61.2 68.3
Utilities 93.9 44.3 - - 93.9 44.3
Retirement and health benefits 99.0 82.7 - - 99.0 82.7
Miscellaneous 29.2 21.3 - - 29.2 21.3
Interest 64.6 60.2 - - 64.6 60.2
Housing - - 16.2 24.1 16.2 24.1
Sewer - - 123.6 130.2 123.6 130.2
Solid waste - - 136.6 140.1 136.6 140.1
Public transportation - - 150.3 150.5 150.3 150.5
Total expenses 844.9 809.7 426.7 444.9 1,271.6 1,254.6

Decrease before transfers 46.8 (12.3) (87.4) (132.2) (40.6) (144.5)
Transfers (61.5) (32.5) 61.5 32.5 - -
Change in net assets (14.7) (44.8) (25.9) (99.7) (40.6) (144.5)
Net assets - beginning 311.6 356.4 744.2 843.9 1,055.8 1,200.3
Net assets - ending $ 2962 $ 311.6 ¢ 7183 $ 7442 $ 1,015.2 $ 1,055.8
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Total revenues for the primary government rose 10.9% from $1.11 billion in fiscal year 2003 to
$1.23 billion for the fiscal year 2004. The revenue gains for fiscal year 2004 may be attributed to
a variety of sources such as increased real property tax collections and federal capital grants for
utilities (governmental activities).

Expenses for the primary government totaled $1.27 billion for fiscal year 2004 of which $844.9
million applied to governmental activities and $426.7 million related to business-type activities. For
the prior fiscal year, expenses for the primary government totaled $1.25 billion; expenses comprised
of $809.7 million for governmental activities and $444.9 million for business-type activities.
Depreciation, included as expenses in the above schedule, amounted to $66.8 million for the
governmental activities and $66 million for business-type activities for fiscal year 2004.

Highways and streets expenses dropped from $45 million for fiscal year 2003 to $19.7 million for
fiscal year 2004 primarily due to the decrease in capital outlays. For example, $13.2 million was
expended for the reconstruction, rehabilitation and resurfacing of streets in fiscal year 2003
compared to $4.1million in fiscal year 2004. Similarly, $4.3 million was expended for wheelchair
ramps in fiscal year 2003 compared to $199 thousand in fiscal year 2004.

Utilities expenses increased from $44.3 million for fiscal year 2003 to $93.9 million for fiscal year
2004 primarily due to the contribution of capital assets to the Public Transportation System for the
bus acquisition program and the cost of studies to improve bus service for the primary transportation
corridor.

Housing expenses decreased from $24.1 million for fiscal year 2003 to $16.2 million for fiscal year
2004 due to the cost of sales totaling $9.1 million for Ewa Villages Areas D and H sold in fiscal year
2003.

Statement of Activities :

As noted earlier, the Statement of Activities presents how the City's net assets changed during the
current fiscal year. Revenues and expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. As such, the statement includes information for
some items that will result in cash flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes).

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $14.7 million in fiscal year 2004 in
contrast to $44.8 million the year earlier. Key elements of the decrease in net assets for both years
were depreciation expense for capital assets, high retirement benefits expense, increased normal wage
costs and inflation. However, the change in net assets improved from the prior year due primarily to
increased real property tax collections and federal grants.
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Revenues. The following exhibit, Comparison of Revenues by Sources as a Percentage of Total
Revenues, indicates revenues from governmental activities remained virtually unchanged for the last
two fiscal years. For example, taxes for fiscal year 2004, including real property taxes of $439
million, amounted to 60.3% of revenues from governmental activities in contrast to 60.1% the year
before. As an exception, capital grants and contributions increased to 7.6% for fiscal year 2004, up
from 4.2% the prior year.

Governmental Activities
Comparison of Revenues by Sources as a Percentage of Total Revenues
FY 2004 and FY 2003

70.0%

60.0% -

50.0% -

40.0% -

30.0% -
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Expenses. During the 2004 fiscal year, the City spent $259.1 million or 30.7% of the
governmental activities budget on public safety, $147.3 million or 17.4% on general government
and $99 million or 11.7% on retirement and health benefits as displayed below on the exhibit of
expenses by function. In the prior fiscal year, the City spent 32.7%, 18.3% and 10.2% on public
safety, general government, and retirement and health benefits, respectively.

Governmental Activities
Comparison of Expenses by Function as a Percentage of Total Expenses
FY 2004 and FY 2003
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Business-type Activities

The net assets from the City’s business-type activities decreased $25.9 million for fiscal year 2004 in
comparison to the decline of $99.7 million for the prior year. The declines were due to a variety of
factors such as not raising key user fees to cover increases for normal wage and inflation expenses and
costs for expanded services.

Revenues. The exhibit below indicates that charges for services provided 74.4% of the revenues for
business-type activities for fiscal year 2004 in contrast to 81.4% for the previous year. Charges for
services totaled $252.6 million for fiscal year 2004 and can be disaggregated as follows: housing
($8 million), sewer ($115 million), solid waste ($94.3 million) and public transportation ($35.3
million). In comparison to fiscal year 2003, total charges for services for business-type activities
decreased $1.9 million, partially resulting from the sale of vacant lands, namely Ewa Villages Areas D
and H, for $9.9 million in the prior fiscal year, offset in part by insurance proceeds of $4.7 million
received in the current fiscal for property damage and business interruption for failure of the electric
generator at the H-POWER facility.

Business-type Activities
Comparison of Revenues by Sources as a Percentage of Total Revenues
FY 2004 and FY 2003
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Expenses. As displayed in the exhibit below, expenses by business-type activities changed slightly in
contrast to the prior year. Public transportation used the most resources (35.2%), followed by solid
waste (32%) and sewer (29%) for fiscal year 2004. The public transportation (bus and handi-van)
operations were subsidized by the governmental activities in the amount of $74.2 million and $75.8
million for fiscal year 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Business-type Activities
Comparison of Expenses by Function as a Percentage of Total Expenses
40.0% FY 2004 and FY 2003
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
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The following table summarizes the changes in fund balances for the City’s governmental funds as of
the end of the 2004 fiscal year, amounting to a surplus of $38.5 million in comparison to a deficit
of $50 million for the prior fiscal year.

Changes in Fund Balances

(Amounts in Millions)
General
Obligation
Bond and General
Interest Improvement All
General Highway Redemption Bond Other Totals
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 2004 2003
Revenues:
Taxes $ 458.1 $ 747 $ - $ - % - ¢ 5328 $ 480.8
Other 164.2 43.2 - - 181.3 388.7 341.3
Total Revenues 622.3 117.9 - - 181.3 921.5 822.1
Expenditures 478.2 57.2 337.4 74.3 188.0 1,135.1 964.9
Subtotal 144.1 60.7 (337.4) (74.3) (6.7) (213.6) (142.8)
Transfers and Other {154.6) (62.9) 337.4 93.0 39.2 252.1 22.8
Changes in Fund Balances $ (10.5) $ (2.2) $ - $ 18.7 $ 325 $ 385 $ (50.0

The above changes in fund balances for the governmental funds differ from the changes in net assets
for governmental activities on page 22. The differences relate to certain financial resources and
expenditures such as debt financing and capital outlays that are included in the changes in fund
balances but are not reported in the changes in net assets as described on page 39.

General Fund.
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2004, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $41.5 million, while total fund balance amounted to $62.3 million,
representing decreases of $10 million and $10.5 million, respectively, in comparison to the prior
fiscal year end.

Real property taxes, the primary General Fund revenue source, jumped $49.4 million, a rise of

12.8% compared to the prior year. The increase resulted primarily from higher assessed valuations
on real property.
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Highway Fund.

The Highway Fund includes special revenue proceeds that have been earmarked by law for highway
and related activities. Major revenue sources include the City fuel tax, vehicle weight tax and public
utility franchise tax. The unreserved fund balance decreased 9.6% from $25.5 million at the close
of the prior fiscal year to $23.1 million as of June 30, 2004. Similarly, total fund balance dropped
8.2% to $24.8 million during the same period.

General Obligation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund.

The General Obligation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund accounts for principal and interest
payments on general obligation serial bonds that have been issued by the City. The balance of
matured bonds and interest payable was unchanged at $358,000 as of June 30, 2004 compared to
the prior year.

General Improvement Bond Fund. _
Although the General Improvement Bond Fund did not meet the qualifying criteria for a major fund
in fiscal year 2004, the City elected to classify it as major. Deposits into the fund include proceeds
from the sale of general obligation bonds and tax exempt commercial paper borrowings for payment
of public improvements appropriated and expended from the fund as specified in the Executive
Capital Budget and Program Ordinance. Also, the fund consists of maturing City improvement
district assessment bonds and special assessment collections. Encumbered contracts underway, one
component of fund balance, decreased 1.3% from $294.9 million at the end of last year to $291.1
million at the close of the 2004 fiscal year. Unreserved capital projects, the other component of
fund balance, reflected deficits of $289.5 million as of June 30, 2004 and $312 million at the end
of the prior year. The total fund balance reflected a surplus of $1.6 million at end of the fiscal year
while a deficit of $17.1 million was reported the year before.

All Other Funds.

All other funds consist of the City’s nonmajor governmental funds. The surplus fund balance of
$32.5 million for fiscal year 2004 was attributed primarily to the $93.5 million proceeds of general
obligation bonds, commercial paper and long-term notes for the Highway Improvement Bond Fund.
On the other hand, the deficiency of $38.4 million in fund balance for fiscal year 2003 resulted in
most part from the excess of expenditures and other uses over revenues and other sources for the
Highway Improvement Bond Fund and Federal Grants Capital Projects Fund. The surplus in fiscal
year 2004 for the nonmajor funds along with the beginning fund balance of $47.6 million resulted in
an ending fund balance of $80.1 million.

Proprietary Funds
The City’s proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There was no significant difference between the original budget and the final amended budget for the
General Fund. Changes represent appropriation transfers within the General Fund, resulting in no
total difference between the original and final budget.

Actual revenues exceeded budgetary estimates by $3.5 million or 0.6% for fiscal year 2004
resulting primarily from a rise in real property tax collections and the sale of Block ], offset by
deferred revenues from the State for emergency ambulance services. For the prior year, actual
revenues surpassed budgeted revenues by $8.8 million or 1.6% primarily due to increased
collections of real property taxes, building permit fees and motor vehicle weight taxes. With
expenditure control measures, actual expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by $24.1
million or 4.6% for fiscal year 2004 and by $25.2 million or 5% for the previous year. The net
changes in fund balance were favorable variances of $46.3 million for fiscal year 2004 and $27.4
million for last year, thereby eliminating the need to draw upon existing reserves.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The City’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $3.5 billion for the

primary government of which $1.7 billion pertained to governmental activities as of June 30, 2004.
This investment in capital assets includes land, construction work in progress, buildings and
improvements, equipment and machinery, and infrastructure.

Some of the major capital asset additions for the governmental funds during the 2004 fiscal year
included dedication of the Ward Avenue Extension ($8 million), land acquisition for Heeia Kea Park
($4 million), building improvements for the Halawa Corporation Yard ($3.6 million), restoration of
the City Hall Annex Auditorium ($2 million) and shoreline protection for Mauna Lahilahi Beach Park
($1.4 million).

Conversely, capital assets were reduced $1.5 million for the sale of Block ] for $10.5 million to
Pflueger Group, LLC.
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The following is a summary of the capital assets for governmental activities as of June 30, 2004 in
comparison to the previous year:

Summary of Capital Assets
(Amounts in millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Non-depreciable assets:

Land $ 477.7 $ 4548 $ 118.1 $ 1055 $ 595.8 ¢ 560.3

Construction work in progress 169.7 165.8 269.9 186.5 439.6 352.3
Other capital assets:

Buildings and improvements 926.0 864.2 653.3 651.9 1,579.3 1,516.1

Equipment and machinery 222.4 217.4 467.4 430.5 689.8 647.9

Infrastructure 777.5 734.8 794.4 793.3 1,571.9 1,528.1
Less: accumulated depreciation (840.7) (781.4) (509.7) (457.6) (1,350.4) (1,239.0)
Net $ 1,732.6 $ 1,655.6 $ 1,793.4 $ 1,710.1 $ 3,5260 § 3,365.7

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the notes of this report.
Long-Term Debt |

At June 30, 2004, the City’s long-term debt consisted of $2.7 billion total bonded debt outstanding
(net of $38.4 million unamortized premium, $25.2 million unamortized discount and $20.2 million
deferred loss on refunding), $86.7 million notes payable, $103,085 capital lease obligations, $1.5
million installment purchase contracts and $1 million special assessments bonds. Of the total bonded
debt, $896 million (net of $24.1 million unamortized discount) represent revenue bonds secured
solely by specified revenue sources.

Debt activity during the year include the following:

o $250 million of General Obligation bonds were issued on August 8, 2003 for refunding of
$145.3 million of general obligation tax-exempt commercial paper notes and for various
capital improvement projects.

e $100 million of Water System Revenue Bonds were issued on January 28, 2004.

o $321.6 million of General Obligation refunding bonds were issued at a premium of $29.6
million less issuance costs, loss on refunding and interest of $22.7 million on April 14, 2004
to refund $8.1 million of general obligation tax-exempt commercial paper notes and $320.4
million of general obligation bonds.

e $100.1 million of general obligation tax-exempt commercial paper notes were issued on

various dates for general obligation bond refunding of $11.5 million and for various capital
improvement projects.
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Concurrent with the issuance of the aforementioned bonds, the City purchased Financial Guarantee
Insurance Policies from MBIA Insurance Corporation. The policies unconditionally guarantee the
payment of principal and interest on the bonds in the event of nonpayment by the City. As a result,
Fitch Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services assigned ratings of
AAA, Aaa and AAA, respectively, for the bonds issued on August 8, 2003 and April 14, 2004.

The City is within all of its legal debt limitations. State statutes limit the amount of general obligation
debt a governmental entity may issue to 15% of its net assessed valuation. The debt limitation for
the City is $11.9 billion for the 2004 fiscal year. Net debt, excluding debt issued for enterprise
fund activities and special assessments, applicable to legal debt margin amounted to $1.5 billion.

Additional information on the City’s debt can be found in the notes of this report and in the
Statistical Section.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Indicators suggest that the local economy continues to be strong. Unemployment is at a record low;
personal income, proprietors’ income, civilian employment, job counts, consumer spending and
federal defense spending are up; and bankruptcy filings declined. On the other hand, inflation,
energy costs, housing prices and interest rates have been rising.

The assessed valuation of real property on Oahu increased 16.7% to $92.4 billion for fiscal year
2005 from $79.2 billion for the previous fiscal year. Additionally, real property tax rates were
raised slightly for unimproved residential, hotel and resort, commercial, and industrial properties.
However, tax rates were lowered nominally for agricultural and preservation lands.

At the same time, motor vehicle weight tax rates increased effective for the registration period
commencing January 1, 2004.

Despite the growth in the economy, the City is making every effort to contain costs while maintaining
the expected level of service to the public. Specifically, the capital improvement budget was slashed
from $455.6 million for fiscal year 2003 to $276.8 million for fiscal year 2004 but was raised to
$298.3 million for fiscal year 2005 primarily to fund sewer infrastructure improvements. Increases
in retirement system contributions, negotiated salaries, health fund contributions, FICA taxes, workers
compensation and risk management prompted modest raises in the operating budgets: from
$1,390.7 million last fiscal year, $1,444.1 million this fiscal year, and $1,531.3 million for next
fiscal year.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in
this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of
Budget and Fiscal Services, City and County of Honolulu, 530 South King Street, Honolulu, Hawaii
96813.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004
(Amounts in thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
ASSETS ,
Cash and cash equivalents ................ $ 109,439 $ 105,985 $ 215,424 $ 16,944
INVESLIMENLS ...vvveeeenneneeecearaernenrensaves 57,786 76,942 134,728 65,701
Receivables (Net) ..cccveverreeeerneneeerenns 130,002 34,080 164,082 14,664
Internal balances .....cccovvvereverererennennes (50) 50 - -
INVENLOMIES ...eoveereeererconsuorenennarneesnos 36 15,909 15,945 4,251
Deferred charges and other .............. : - 4,309 4,309 3,041
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............ - 587 587 65,384
INVESLMENTS eevvevrneeeeneeoncnnnnsnnnnnss - - - 51,036
107111:) JUSTRIUURI - 4,013 4,013 2,099
Capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation): _
Land ceeeveeeiernnnnnnnrenennnearaeresenanans 477,703 118,122 595,825 30,090
Buildings and improvements ......... 618,685 529,795 1,148,480 90,617
Equipment and machinery ............ 83,614 166,321 249,935 85,530
INFrastrUCIUre vveeveeeeeveeerevneeereeneess 382,893 709,229 1,092,122 677,273
Construction work in progress. ....... 169,739 269,928 439,667 155,757
Total aSSEts veveeveneeenneneerneeean 2,029,847 2,035,270 4,065,117 1,262,387
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ........ccceereerienecenen 30,170 29,108 59,278 24,825
Matured bonds and interest payable ... 367 - 367 -
Accrued interest payable .......cocceeennes 20,521 19,949 40,470 3,636
Due to fiduciary funds .....ccceeeveeereenee 2,605 21 2,626 -
Other Habilities ...cceeeeerreercnnensinernes 1,229 36,167 37,396 12,808
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year .........coovueeene 126,315 59,073 185,388 1,135
Due in more than one year ........... 1,551,664 1,172,679 2,724,343 219,801
Total fiabilities .........ccceeeenn... 1,732,871 1,316,997 3,049,868 262,205
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt ..c.ceeeeecveererererrerrenienes 211,083 747,875 958,958 876,242
Restricted for: '
Capital actiVity .....coeevensrennenneenenns - - - 48,925
Debt SErviCe ..eceeervrerereerereeensenene 1,056 22,584 23,640 --
Unrestricted vuveeveveeereeneceecnennnennes 84,837 (52,186) 32,651 75,015
Total Net assets ....cceeeeeenrenceenesercanes $ 296,976 $ 718,273 $ 1,015,249 $ 1,000,182

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
( Amounts in thousands )
: (Page 1 of 2)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General gOVernment.....e.eveveesees $ 147,296 $ 90,126 §$ 3,327 $ 7,031
Public safety....ccveeceeemncceessisnnnes 259,067 26,058 8,880 1,154
Highways and streets......c.ccccouves 19,667 2,232 . 162 7,549
SaNItAtioN..eeuueeenneeranorensesiscorsens 699 5 - 1,933
Human services.....cccceeeeserensenece. 70,165 2,033 57,693 17,198
Culture and recreation.............. 61,158 20,012 488 1,131
ULIlItIES. e eererororcenmerearsenarsarennes 93,954 ‘ - 23,040 31,679
Retirement and health benefits... 99,021 - - -
Miscellaneous.......cceernervncrsocees 29,232 - - -
INLEreSt.eneeeereeneemenrorsesarsussnnsians 64,558 - -- -=
Total governmental activites... 844,817 140,466 93,590 67,675
Business-type activities:
Housing...ccooveeeiiiieinirienereenannens 16,247 7,948 - -
SEWET euueererrnansrennocnasrscnssassasens 123,653 115,032 - 1,442
Solid Waste......ceceneeereeriooncrnnes 136,623 94,321 - -
Public Transportation................ 150,267 35,333 - 74,216
Total business-type activites.... 426,790 252,634 - 75,658
Total primary government............ceee. $ 1,271,607 $ 393,100 §$ 93,590 ¢ 143,333
Component unit:
Board of Water SUPPIY....cceeerrveanees $ 119,766 $ 101,499 $ 406 $ 15,819
General revenues:
PrOPEILY LAXES.eiunrrrareaercrmecrusrososioseensrsscrnsssesssrssrrosorsscssossasersnsaroes
Public service COMPANY LaAX...vceieenerrerennrrercissrnnsrmoconsssssssssosssossssrass
FURT TAX vuvverenrerieenrnernenremneencencsecesssssrsrassonasassssssesanssessasssssosssssnsnn
Public utility franchisSe taX. .. oerereeerieinseceeneeicescrsrnrsianssesssssssescsresssses
INVESLIMENE CAININES. . veurreererererrenermecenrconraressrenssrncssnsernsressessssssssnscs
Unrestricted grants and contributions.......ccciveeiiieisnsiieiorasinicissnnniaes
OB cveererrrruecinrrenseserereressesnreasmaserarseancssnsstnnsenssssssssesanssonsarssnasss
T rANS OIS e eeeeirenerernencrrersesncerosreraessesneennescrserasersesassnssessassssnsssssorssassss
Total general revenues and transfers....ccccivireeieeininneisiesireeessinssenes
Change N NEL ASSELS....crveeerarereancreaseernaserrensssrasssrnnssaransssssesssessas
Net assets - beginning, as restated for Component Unit.......ccceeeeerermanene
Net assets = eNdiNg....cceeeurueeniiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiinniniiniiiiiiissniesessisssosssssens

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
(Amounts in thousands )

(Page 2 of 2)
Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
$ (46,812) $ - $ (46,812) % -
(222,975) - (222,975) -
(9,724) - (9,724) -
1,239 - 1,239 -
6,759 - 6,759 -
(39,527) -- (39,527) -
(39,235) - (39,235) -
(99,021) - (99,021) -
(29,232) - (29,232) -
(64,558) - (64,558) b
(543,086) - (543,086) --
- (8,299) (8,299) --
- (7,179) (7,179) --
-- (42,302) (42,302) -
- (40,718) (40,718) --
- (98,498) (98,498) --
(543,086) (98,498) (641,584)
- -- -- (2,042)
438,964 - 438,964 -
22,819 - 22,819 -
49,271 - 49,271
26,800 - 26,800 -
1,907 11,037 12,944 4,429
36,127 - 36,127 -
14,120 - 14,120
(61,505) 61,505 - .
528,503 72,542 601,045 4,429
(14,583) (25,956) (40,539) 2,387
311,559 744,229 1,055,788 997,795

$ 296,976 $ 718,273 $ 1,015249 $ 1,000,182
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements

MA]JOR FUNDS

General Fund
This fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Fund
Highway Fund

This fund accounts for disposition of proceeds from special revenues earmarked by law for highway
and related activities. Major revenue sources include the City fuel tax, vehicle weight tax and public
utility franchise tax.

Debt Service Fund
General Obligation Bond and Interest Redemption Fund
This fund accounts for payments of principal and interest on general obligation serial bonds issued by
_the City.

Capital Projects Fund
General Improvement Bond Fund

This fund accounts for proceeds of general obligation bonds issued to pay all or part of those
appropriations in the Capital Budget Ordinance for public improvements specified to be expended from
this fund.

NONMA]JOR FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds
Highway Beautification and Disposal of Abandoned Vehicles Revolving Fund

This fund accounts for receipts from each certificate of registration. These monies are expended
primarily for the beautification of highways under the jurisdiction of the City and the disposition of
abandoned vehicles.

Bikeway Fund
This fund accounts for the bicycle biennial registration fee, which is earmarked for operating,
acquisition and other costs related to bikeways.

Parks and Playgrounds Fund _

All monies received in lieu of providing land in perpetuity or dedicating land, together with facilities
for park and playground purposes are recorded in this fund. These monies must be expended for the
purchase of land for parks and playgrounds, park and playground equipment, and/or the improvement
of existing parks and playgrounds.

Federal Revenue Sharing Fund '
All monies received from the federal government under the State and Local Fiscal Assistance Act of
1972 are deposited in this fund and expended for purposes authorized by the provisions of the Act.



Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

NONMAJOR FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)
Liquor Commission Fund

This fund accounts for all monies collected by as well as received on behalf of the Liquor
Commission and used for operational and administrative costs of the Liquor Commission.

Rental Assistance Fund
This fund accounts for all net receipts from the Hale Pauahi parking structure which are
expended for monthly rental assistance payments to landlords on behalf of eligible applicants.

Zoo Animal Purchase Fund

This fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of surplus animals from the Honolulu Zoo and all
donations made specifically for the purchase of animals. Funds in this account shall be expended for
the acquisition of zoo animals to include shipping, insurance, travel and other related costs.

Hanauma Bay Nature Preserve Fund

This fund accounts for receipts from the entrance and vehicle admission fees to the Hanauma Bay
Nature Preserve and is earmarked primarily for the operation, maintenance and improvement of the
Nature Preserve.

Special Reserve Fund

This fund accounts for all monies determined to be in excess of expenditures at the end of each fiscal
year. All monies deposited into this fund shall be used solely for (1) natural disaster relief, (2)
unanticipated obligations to third parties, and/or (3) significant events endangering the health, welfare
or safety of the residents of the island of Oahu.

Community Development Fund _

Monies are provided by the federal government under the Housing and Community Development
Act of 1974, as amended; the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990, as amended; monies
generated as program income; and monies carried over from prior years. Funds are expended to carry
out the objectives of the Acts.

Golf Fund
Receipts for this fund are derived from the operation of the City’s golf facilities. All funds are
expended for the management, operation and maintenance of the municipal golf courses.

Special Events Fund

This fund accounts for all revenues derived from the operation of the City's auditorium facilities,
Waikiki Shell and Honolulu Zoo. All funds are expended for the operation of the Department of
Enterprise Services.



Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

NONMA]JOR FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)
Farmers Home Administration Loan Fund

This fund accounts for all proceeds from the issuance and sale of bonds to the Farmers Home
Administration for the purpose of financing portions of the cost of such projects as approved by the
Farmers Home Administration.

Special Projects Fund

This fund accounts for all monies received under special contracts executed between the City and
the State of Hawaii. Monies received from various other sources for operating and capital
improvement expenditures for which no financing has been provided in other funds, such as
contributions from property owners exclusive of improvement district assessment collections, are also
accounted for in this fund.

Federal Grants Fund

This fund accounts for all monies received from the federal government as grants for specific
projects as well as supporting monies from other sources, where such monies are not accountable in
any other fund. All monies placed in the fund are maintained in separate accounts identified with, and
expended for, the intended purposes.

Housing and Community Development Rehabilitation Loan Fund

This fund makes loan monies available primarily to low and moderate income applicants unable to
secure or qualify for funds under the Rehabilitation Loan Program sponsored by the federal
government.

Pauahi Project Expenditures, Hawaii R-15 Fund

This fund was created to facilitate financing of the Pauahi Project redevelopment plan providing for
the acquisition, clearance, construction of site improvements, and sale or lease of home, apartment and
commercial sites to private parties for development in accordance with said plan.

Housing and Community Development Section 8 Contract Fund
This fund accounts for all monies received from the federal government under the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974 for the purposes set forth under Title Il of the Act.

Leasehold Conversion Fund

This fund accounts for all monies to assist lessees to purchase, at fair and reasonable prices, lands
upon which residential condominium, cooperative housing or residential planned development are
situated.

Improvement District Revolving Fund

Monies in this revolving fund are available to cover deficiencies, advance interest due, reimburse the
General Fund in the event the payment of assessments are late or insufficient, and pay all expenses in
connection with the sale of delinquent lots as bid for and purchased for the City by the Director of
Budget and Fiscal Services.



Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

NONMAJOR FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds (Continued)
Housing and Community Development Revolving Fund
This fund serves as a working capital fund to facilitate the expenditure of joint costs.

Municipal Stores Revolving Fund
This fund is used to finance the Municipal Stores through bulk purchases and resale of regularly used
standard printed forms and various publications dealing with City matters.

Debt Service Fund
Improvement District Bond and Interest Redemption Fund

This fund accounts for the redemption of maturing City improvement district assessment bonds and
collections of special assessments.

Capital Projects Funds
Highway Improvement Bond Fund

Proceeds of general obligation bonds issued to pay all or a part of those appropriations in the Capital
Budget Ordinance for highway and related public improvements are accounted for in this fund.

Federal Grants Capital Projects Fund

All monies received from the federal government in the form of grants, entitlements or payments in
lieu of taxes, to fund capital projects, and Federal Revenue Sharing funds appropriated for capital
projects are deposited or transferred into this fund and expended for the purposes for which such
monies are received or appropriated.

Capital Projects Fund

Monies received from sources other than the federal government in the form of grants, entitlements,
shared revenues or payments in lieu of taxes, to fund capital projects, and City monies appropriated for
capital projects are deposited or transferred into this fund and expended for the purposes for which
such monies are received or appropriated. All transactions relating to acquisition of capital
improvements financed by special assessments are also accounted for in this fund.



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2004
(Amounts in thousands)
General
Obligation
Bond and General
Interest Improvement Other Total
General Highway Redemption Bond Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments: :
With Treasury «.....cceeceeemeecene $ 45,964 $ 20,429 $ 358 $ 7,098 $ 93,376 $ 167,225
Receivables ......cecccmevrrericcennane 20,462 17,593 - - 91,947 130,002
Due from other funds ............. 21,571 - - 5,197 297 27,065
Inventories ......ccccceiieirnicicnnnne -- - - - 36 36
Total AsSets ...cc.eceeneen $ 87,997 $ 38,022 $ 358 $ 12,295 $ 185,656 $ 324,328
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable .......cccec.... $ 5087 § 183 $ - 3 5,824 $ 14,937 $ 26,033
Accrued payroll .......ceeeeneenne 3,735 261 - - 141 4,137
Due to other funds .......cceeenne 2,815 93 - 4,876 21,936 29,720
Matured bonds and
interest payable....cccorveeeennee - - 358 - 9 367
Deferred revenue .......ooevvenees 14,041 12,709 - -- 68,463 95,213
Total Liabifities ............ 25,680 13,246 358 10,700 105,486 155,470
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances .........eveeennnes 20,838 1,696 - 291,086 310,466 624,086
Debt service ....cceeerrereraracnns - - - - 1,056 1,056
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund ........cccceecenenee 41,479 - - - - 41,479
Special revenue funds ......... - 23,080 - - (?) 23,071
Capital projects funds ......... -- -- - (289,491) (231,343) (520,834)
Total Fund Balances ..... 62,317 24,776 -- 1,595 80,170 168,858
Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances ........... $ 87,997 $ 38,022 $ 358 $ 12,295 $ 185,656
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 1,732,634
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 95,213
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (1,699,729)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 296,976

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
( Amounts in thousands )

General
Obligation
Bond and General
Interest Improvement Other Total
General Highway Redemption Bond Governmental ~ Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes....... . $ 458,116 $ 74,688 § - % - % - $ 532,804
Special assessments - - - - 56 56
Licenses and permitS....cuccecssssecrssssssonsnrercon 34,258 36,907 - - 2,973 74,138
Intergovernmental......ceeveercorrescasnns . 35,584 - - - 145,262 180,846
Charges for services 4,650 4,462 - - 13,033 22,145
Fines and fOrfeits.....cocerereecrcrscorersnsncrassscsos 417 5 - - 235 657
Miscellaneous:
Reimbursements and recoveries........cccaeue 77,403 263 -- - 10 77,676
Interest 1,908 - - - 565 2,473
Other.ceeeeeeeeeresesessnecssarssen reereesensnrenaos 9,934 1,556 - - 19,220 30,710
Total Revenues 622,270 117,881 - - 181,354 921,505
Expenditures:
Current:
General OVernment.... e ecreecoerrerceceenaes 94,690 11,827 - - 9,458 115,975
PUDHC Safety..eererrerrerscanereesressensanessssonses 229,602 19,888 - - 6,741 256,231
Highways and streets.......c.coorereeneecsennsenes 2,076 12,726 - - 162 14,964
Sanitation - 692 - - - 692
HUmMan Services....cccieessreernsoronesosseesnanass 1,403 - - - 55,591 56,994
Culture-recreation.. 42,917 - - - 16,595 59,512
Utilities or other enterprises..........cccccvcee - 1,296 - - 23,040 24,336
Miscellaneous:
Retirement and health benefits............ 85,664 9,321 - - 4,143 99,128
20,250 1,453 - - 510 22,213
Capital Qutlay:
General gOVernmMeNt.....cccccoevcansssescerscone - - - 28,176 2,378 30,554
Public safety.....ccccvvierenreccecsnsennnccncnsananns - - - 4,576 6,978 11,554
Highways and streets - - - 6,329 28,566 34,895
SaANILALON. . .eeeecenreeronneacrmmeneerrererirererences - - - - 7 7
Human services.......ooeeveerevrcrnnicnsnncnnnnes - - - - 17,636 17,636
Culture-recreation - - - 35,282 1,339 36,621
Utilities or other enterprises......c.icecesvensen - - - - 14,388 14,388
Debt service:
PHNCIPAL ceeeceeeererrecrcennnennescrsnnasarecesanenes 1,336 - 256,883 - 365 258,584
INEEIESL. eoruerereremruesenssrannmentnnriensiesssnsaene 205 - 80,488 - 81 80,774
Total EXpenditires......eeecreereerrsrasnassoecese 478,143 57,203 337,371 74,363 187,978 1,135,058
Revenues over (under) Expenditures........ 144,127 60,678 (337,371) (74,363) (6,624) (213,553)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of general obligation bonds ........... - - 153,435 41,815 63,543 258,793
Proceeds of tax exempt commercial paper ... - - 18,022 51,242 30,000 99,264
Proceeds of long-term notes ........cceceeeevienees - - - - 13 13
Proceeds of refunding bonds .......c.ceeeeenneen - - 275,444 - - 275,444
Payment of refunded bonds - - (275,444) - - - (275,444)
Sales of general fixed assetS...c.ocreereecrrnesanns 10,544 276 - - - 10,820
Transfers in 85,686 - 165,914 - 23,123 274,723
Transfers out.......... (250,856) (63,159) - - (22,213) (336,228)
Capital Contributions - - - (20) (55,265) (55,285)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)...... (154,626) (62,883) 337,371 93,037 39,201 252,100
Net change in fund balances........cccuveveuee (10,499) (2,205) - 18,674 32,577 38,547
Fund Balances - July 1 . 72,816 26,981 - (17,079) 47,593 130,311
Fund Balances - June 30.....cevvvcenveeecenecnnnrenas $ 62,317 ¢ 24,776 $ - $ 1,595 ¢ 80,170 $ 168,858

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
{ Amounts in thousands )

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds $ 38,547

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. The Statement of Activities
reports depreciation expense on capital assets. This is the difference between the two
amounts for this year. 77,034

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 15,086

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt are reported as providing current financial
resources in the governmental funds, but are reported as long-term debt in the
government-wide financial statements. Repayment of such debt is reported as an
expenditure for governmental funds but is reported as a reduction of debt in the
government-wide financial statements. (133,688)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. (11,562)
Change in net assets of governmental activities ) $ (14,583)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Housing Development Special Fund
This fund accounts for monies designated for the development of housing for sale or for rental by
the City. Transactions in this fund are incorporated in the special statements for the housing program.

Sewer Fund

This fund accounts for all monies received pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act amendments of 1972 and the Hawaii Revised Statutes and expended for the purposes
authorized.

Solid Waste Special Fund

This fund accounts for all revenues derived from the operation of the City’s Refuse Division, solid
waste disposal programs, glass recycling program, and other recycling programs. All monies placed in
this fund are maintained in separate accounts identified with and expended for the intended purposes.

Public Transportation System :
The Bus Transportation Fund was created for the management, operation, and maintenance of the

bus transportation system, including the City bus system {TheBus) and the special transit service (The
Handi-Van).



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2004

(Amounts in thousands)

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Pubilic
Solid Transportation Totals
Housing Sewer Waste System
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ....c.c.eeveeemeeressrseoraesnee $ 22,581 $ 59,971 $ 20,003 % 3,430 $ 105,985
TNVESLIMENLS covvveereensvreernemrsessrnrsoseesnsansssosssssensns - 63,673 11,557 1,712 76,942
Receivables:
Accounts {net of allowance for uncollectibles
Of $4,045 )errreeieeiecrrenecnereconenicesnennes 717 15,658 10,632 1,403 28,410
TNEEFESE vevvereeeerveesreesensrensrenseseresssssesssesssssnnes 18 199 1,341 1,558
INLErgovernmental .......veeeereeereriseisreererssasanees - - 1,647 - 1,647
NOEE veeerevrrrereesrerantessrrsasesssnaeensesssnsronsasssanenn 2,465 - - - 2,465
Duie from other fUnds .......cceveerrcercnnseecsssisssssancses .- 4,885 139 - 5,024
Inventories of parts, materials and supplies, at cost
(net of $50 reserve for obsolescence) ............... - 4,711 - 6,661 11,372
Inventories of real estate held for sale ........c.ccceeun. 4,537 - - - 4,537
Prepaid expenses and Other assets ........coceerruvensenses 23 -- 551 - 574
Total CUITENT ASSELS veeeerererueeencesiiossssssssnsen 30,341 149,097 45,870 13,206 238,514
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equUIVAIENts ......c.ceeevvrirerisiunneenninnes - - - 587 587
OUNEE veveeeeertiereessresseesssesaessesneessasssssnsssssansrnans 4,013 - - - 4,013
Fixed Assets:
LaNG cereerreieererriesrreererreseessseesesessesssesessssessnen 13,890 5,856 24,148 74,228 118,122
Buildings and IMProvemeNnts .....c.uveeeevrerecessensennne 108,504 441,618 52,483 50,720 653,325
Transmission and distribution SYStem .......cecvevesinnnes - 794,390 - - 794,390
Equipment and Machinery ......ccc.coueverumsneiuesinnnens 237 24,384 247,454 32,191 304,266
Buses and other transit VEhicles .......ccevrcererenueniennne - - - 163,073 163,073
Construction wWork in Progress ........cocovveresserssaces 6,478 262,113 295 1,042 269,928
Accumulated depreciation .......ccccereeviiniiinnrisnnnes (39,735) (143,975) (191,420) (134,579) (509,709)
Deferred charges and OtHer .....cecerveerviriieereciniennenes 2,454 - 422 859 3,735
TOLal ASSELS ..eveererrerrranseesencessansenmesessnosness 126,182 1,533,483 179,252 201,327 2,040,244
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE <ovveeereerrieerericsiseesreesseesanianens 773 17,391 8,380 2,564 29,108
Interest Payable-CUITENT ...vvvveeereeeemirassnensrneessanennee 1,746 11,438 6,765 - 19,949
Notes payable-CUITENE ......veeecersreerireisunsecssrnaaces -- 5,756 - - 5,756
Bonds payable-CUITENt ......eeeeecereuesssiessserasssnenses 4,960 10,832 20,817 - 36,609
Tax-exempt COMmercial Paper ........occovvevscassenrenees - 10,022 837 - 10,859
Operating fee obligation, net of note receivable ...... - - 5,534 - 5,534
Due 10 Other fUNS ..vveveeeeeeerisissierensiensrnnrenseres 1 217 4,777 - 4,995
Reserve for insurance claims payable ......occcevveneennes - - - 11,381 11,381
Accrued Payroll ....cocceeererercresnsensseniinesiansenines - 290 387 1 678
Other current Habilities . ...cveeerreeeserrcceseesererisnienies 102 330 149 1,111 1,692
Total Current Liabilitles ......ecceeerreiiiineniinnnns 7,582 56,276 47,646 15,057 126,561
NOLES PAYADIE .vceververerrcrerrreeesmeeescsesissssesasnassanens - 74,124 ' - - 74,124
General obligation bonds payable, Net .......oceeruvveeennns 106,453 48,344 166,181 - 320,978
Revenue bonds payable, NEt ...cccveeerevereeiiuincicernnnn. - 677,652 - - 677,652
Operating fee obligation, net of note receivable .......... - - 84,970 - 84,970
Estimated liabitity for landfill closure and
POSLCIOSLITE CAF@ COSLS..eveerureeereruesrrsseinsssesnrsansans - -- 15,272 - 15,272
Other HabilItIes «.....eeveerverierrereresecnsmsesssssesssniossnrenens 10,609 5,430 3,108 3,267 22,414
Total Liabifities ....oevverveeeserecrererncercrcsssainins 124,644 861,826 317,177 18,324 1,321,971
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt .......... (22,040) 638,114 (54,874) 186,675 747,875
Restricted for debt SEIVICE .....coveereruerernreerescasenes - 22,584 - - 22,584
UNFESTIICIEA vovverrerereeieeerreresseeeecensesssniesssnsessanes 23,578 10,959 (83,051) (3,672) (52,186)
Total Net Assets (Deficit) ...cccoreereerernmercnnas $ 1,538 $ 671,657 $ (137,925) $ 183003 $ 718,273

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

(Amounts in thousands)
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Public
Solid Transportation Totals
Housing Sewer Waste System
Operating Revenues: A
Sales of dwelling units and lots ............ $ 255 % - % - $ - $ 255
Rental inCome ....ceueereecirenienecriancncens 7,693 - 3,223 - 10,916
Sewer service Charges .....cceveurinerennnns = 111,886 - - 111,886
Disposal and collection fees ................ - - 55,424 - 55,424
Electrical energy fee .....ccccomnveonecroncens = - 29,094 - 29,094
Passenger fares for transit services ....... - - - 34,887 34,887
Other reVeNUEe .....ccevveverrraneconnconosenns -- 3,146 1,242 446 4,834
Total Operating Revenues .............. 7,948 115,032 88,983 35,333 247,296
Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general ................ 816 29,990 38,507 336 69,649
MaiNtenance ....cceceeeecrmncrenirecrecsncnnss 1,275 170 169 3 1,617
Depreciation ......ccccccerreneccnnerrnnereanses 3,591 30,575 16,922 14,865 65,953
Contractual Services .....co.eeeeveennereanenas 771 8,231 40,589 104,018 153,609
Supplemental operating fee ......cc..o..ee. - - 3,223 - 3,223
Fringe benefits ...cvvveenvirencrececionnrenens 94 10,348 7,700 - 18,142
Materials and supplies .......coeeeceecrnensns 26 5,336 2,283 9,785 17,430
Fuel and Iubricants .....ccccceeveeeevensnrnnce - 1,654 216 6,481 8,351
INSUTANCE ..evvroeriommniorninenenorennensinnanee 156 - 1,945 10,978 13,079
State taxes - fuel .....evcvcriervnnniiinioncnes - - 88 2,102 2,190
UHTICES veveereereenrereeneeencnesereaenronnansnse 921 7,585 188 1,152 9,846
Cost of sales - dwelling units and lots ... 141 - -- - 141
OhEr weveeeeeereeeeenrrcrruecarernsassornnssenes - 22 -- 490 512
Total Operating Expenses .............. 7,791 93,911 111,830 150,210 363,742
Operating Income (Loss) ............... 157 21,121 (22,847) (114,877) (116,446)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
INLErest rEVENUE eueureveenreeneennnionnasaene 297 1,540 9,191 12 11,040
INterest EXPeNnSse ..ce.verereiacecrernereraareans (4,578) (26,573) {24,711) - (55,862)
Gain {Loss) from disposal of property .. -- (2,790) - (57) (2,847)
AMOrtization eXPense ........ceeceevecennens (99) - (82) - (181)
Net decrease in the fair '
value of investments ........ceceveeiones - - = (3) (3)
Other wueerrieerrremeicrereereaneseerneneaennnes (3,779} (379) 5,338 - 1,180
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) ........... reessineeenenine (8,159) (28,202) (10,264) (48) (46,673)
Loss before Transfers and
Capital Contributions........c.c...... (8,002) (7,081) (33,111) (114,925) (163,119)
Transfers In co.eevcevvrreiiiiiiiiiiiininnnn, 8 - 56,494 74,071 130,573
Transfers QUL ..eueeeeeienemeninecremnrcensinees - (31,077) (37,991) - (69,068)
Capital Contributions .......c.cceveevreeceenrennee - 1,442 - 74,216 75,658
Change in Net Assets ......c.oeeueeee (7,994) (36,716) (14,608) 33,362 {25,956)
Net Assets - JUly T connverneereeirienereanenen. 9,532 708,373 (123,317) 149,641 744,229
Net Assets - June 30 .....ooveercnecreccnennnnns $ 1,538 §$ 671,657 $ (137,925) §$ 183,003 $ 718,273

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

{Amounts in thousands)

Public
Solid Transportation Totals
Housing Sewer Waste System
Cash fiows from operating activities:
Receipts from CUSLOIMErS.....eemeresevernces 2,302 $ 115,482 $ 85,685 $ 34,364 $ 244,833
Payments to suppliers.....cccceeereeeas (5,153) (30,898) (62,235) (132,508) {230,794)
Payments to employees, - (37,355) (18,677) (926) (56,958)
Payments for interfund services used..... - 20,140 (1,354) - 18,786
Other receipts (payments).....c..ceseeeees 2,101 31 {2,336) - {204)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities ......c.covecnaerens 6,250 67,400 1,083 (99,070) (24,337)
Cash flows from noncapital financing
activities:
Transfers in coveeeeceeerenvnerrreensecncsnenens 8 - 53,832 74,071 127,911
Transfers out - (31,077) (35,325) - (66,402)
Contributions - - - 25,093 25,093
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities ...... 8 {(31,077) 18,507 99,164 86,602
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of
CaPItal ASSELS ceeurrnvrrrvnnrsrerorsanranes (83) (92,276) (2,539) - (94,898)
Proceeds from issuing NOtes ....c.ceeeee - 3 837 - 840
Proceeds from issuing tax exempt
commercial Paper .c.ceeeeeeeuenranenes - 10,022 - - 10,022
Principal paid on operating fee
ObHZAtON ceveerrirereneerrerceneennnennens - - (19,217) - (19,217)
Interest paid on operating fee
OblIgatioN .cvcrreecenreriocrisssensnnanane - - (11,396) - (11,396)

Proceeds from issuing bonds ........... 36,471 56 7,811 - 44,338

Principal paid on notes ......ceeeueeeuns - (5,619) - - (5,619)

Principal paid on bonds ........ccocueeeee (43,656) (10,844) (20,089) - (74,589)

Interest paid on NOLES .....ccrererseaneann - (2,771) (2) - (2,773)

Interest paid on bonds .......cceeeeeneee. (4,438) (27,070} (11,433) - (42,941)

Net cash used in
capital and related financing
ACHVILIES vevvevremruenssnsencossusnsenss {11,706) (128,499) (56,028) -- (196,233}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of INVeSIMENLS ...coeveereenreracens (282,500) (309,417) (138,925) (23,336) (754,178)
Proceeds from maturities of .

INVESEMENIS covvevorcrsesrmsrscsarsrsnsnanenns 282,500 344,376 138,703 22,712 788,291
Principal received on notes receivable ... 1,740 - 14,282 - 16,022
Interest received on notes receivable .... 40 - 9,039 - 9,079
Deposits into restricted assets .......eeeeess (339) - - - (339)
Interest on INVESIMENTS ....couverrennerannes 256 1,642 402 12 2,312

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities .........oeeenenee 1,697 36,601 23,501 (612) 61,187
Net decrease in cash _
and cash equivalents ......ccceeeens (3,751) (55,575) (12,937) (518) (72,781) -
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1 ........... 26,332 115,546 32,940 4,535 179,353
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30 ........ 22,581 $ 59,971 $ 20,003 $ 4,017 $ 106,572

(Public Transportation includes $587 in

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

(Page 1 of 2)

cash and cash equivalents in restricted assets)
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

{Amounts in thousands)

(Page 3 of 2)
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
Public
Solid Transportation Totals
Housing Sewer Waste System
Reconciliation of operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Operating income {105} +.coovveessesenneees $ 157 $ 21,121 $  (22,847) $ (114,877) $ (116,446)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 3,591 30,575 16,922 14,865 65,953
Other revenues (€Xpenses) ....ccceeewees 2,101 - 5,140 (513) 6,728
Writeoff of capital assets ........ccevveras - 218 - - 218
(Increase) decrease in
accounts receivable ....coeevieeceneenes 1,354 679 3,427 (827) 4,633
Increase in
intergovernmental receivable ....... - - (1,647) - (1,647)
(Increase) decrease in due
from other funds .....c.ccceverennenen. - 20,239 (182) - 20,057
Increase in parts,
materials and supplies ....cccceeveennee - (287) - (80) (367)
Decrease in reaf estate held
for sale 138 - - - 138
(Increase) decrease in prepaid
expenses and other assets ............ (n -~ 114 - 113
Increase (decrease) in trade
accounts payables ......eeveeecrcessanes (904) (4,685) 453 - (5,136)
Increase in reserve for
insurance claims payable ............. - - - 1,011 1,011
Decrease in deferred
credits (187) - (20) (143) (350)
Increase (decrease) in other
liabilities 1 (521) (345) 1,494 629
Increase in due to
Other fUnds ..o.ceeeececernecseceonneennens -- 61 68 -- 129
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities ......ceeeeceenns $ 6,250 $ 67,400 § 1,083 $  (99,070) $ (24,337)

Supplemental disclosure of noncash capital and related financing activities (amounts in thousands):
Housing

Amortization of deferred refinancing charges amounted to $99 for the year ended June 30, 2004. Amortization of bond
premium, included as interest expense, amounted to $52 for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Sewer

The Sewer Fund received $ 1,443 in contributions of capital assets from government agencies and developers which are
recorded as contributed capital at their cost or estimated cost for the year ended June 30, 2004. Amortization of bond
discount amounted to $1,633 for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Solid Waste

Amortization of bond discount and bond issuance cost amounted to $82 for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Interest expense for bond premium and bond deferred loss on refunding amounted to $18 for the year ended June 30, 2004.

Public Transportation System

The Public Transportation System received contributions of fixed assets from the City and County
of Honolulu amounting to $60,068 for the year ended June 30, 2004.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

General Trust Fund
This fund accounts for monies received by the various agencies of the City for specific purposes, as
trustee, escrow agent, custodian or security holder, for which no special fund exists.

Treasury Trust Fund
Receipts and disbursements of monies from this fund are made through commercial checking
accounts authorized by the Director of Budget and Fiscal Services.

Real Property Tax Trust Fund
This fund is used for the purpose of making refunds and adjustments relating to real property taxes.

Payroll Clearance Fund
This fund is used to clear payments of all salaries and wages.



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2004
(Amounts in thousands)

Private-purpose Agency
Trust Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ........ccccevvvevvveeeennnneecneas $ 1,567 $ 16,877
INVESUMENLS ouerrereeenirerecsisnscseressenscsrossiornaccsscsnnas 2,617 6,323
Due from other funds .....cccceeeecreeirucsccsrsessasssacnns - 2,626
TOtal SSELS vevvnrerrerrerocreosansorrrsrarserssnrasssnne 4,184 25,826
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ....cceeveciiiininiiinsiiieniinienrnnn. - 2,766
Other current Habilities .......cevveeerierrmsniiiierneisienes - 23,060
Total [abilities ..evveevereenncerrennvmsersennisrcanne - 25,826
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for individuals, organizations
and other SOVEINMENLS ......cccceerrersrsrcressoserenses $ 4,184 $ --

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU
 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2004
(Amounts in thousands)

Private-purpose

Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
THIETESE vevnverennsenssosnsssssessecsnsansnssanessoessossssssasssnssssnsessanne $ 16
Collections for sundry creditors, contributions, etc............. 615
Total AAAIIONS cevvevrreenrerreonernsconsenasassoneresssssssasonsonccs 631
‘DEDUCTION
Payments in accordance with trust agreements .......ccceeeeeees 785
Change iN Net aSSELS ruveeerrcerreeserorrnonssesanaracescsansasane (154)
NEL 2SSEES = JUIY T evvereeerereeesommsremsnssssssnsaessassssasssssssssnes 4,338
Net assets - JUNE 30 ...eeeeeeereresesssssiossessssennnronseereasassssnseass $ 4,184

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Financial Reporting Entity

The City and County of Honolulu, State of Hawaii (“City”) is a municipal corporation
governed by an elected mayor and a nine-member City Council. The City operates under a
City Charter, which was originally adopted in 1959 and last amended in 1998.

The accompanying financial statements present the operations of the City, as primary
government, as well as its discretely presented component unit, the Board of Water Supply.

The City’s operations are organized by the following general functions: general government,
public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, health and human resources, culture and
recreation, urban redevelopment and housing, and utilities or other enterprises.

State of Hawaii (“State”) agencies assume full responsibility for several major functions usually
performed by local governments such as education, welfare, health and judicial functions.
These agencies are not dependent on the City and therefore, are not included in these financial
statements. There are no separate city, county or township governments nor any school
district, special districts, authorities or public corporations with overlapping authority
presented in the accompanying financial statements.

Discretely Presented Component Unit — The component unit column in the financial
statements includes the financial data of the City’s discretely presented component unit, the
Board of Water Supply (“Board”), which is a semi-autonomous proprietary agency of the City.
It is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

A majority of the members of the Board, the governing body, are appointed by the Mayor
and confirmed by the City Council. The Board has been granted corporate powers by the City
Charter. The City does not have the authority to modify or approve the Board’s budgets.
Water and revenue bonds payable of the Board are general obligations of the City. As the
City would be obligated to repay these bonds in the event of default by the Board, the City is
financially accountable for the debts of the Board. Complete financial statements of the Board
may be obtained from the Board of Water Supply, 630 South Beretania Street, Honolulu,
Hawaii 96843.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements — The government-wide financial
statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information
on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from the legally separate component unit for which the primary government is
financially accountable.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

The statement of activities reflects the direct expenses of the functional category or segment,
which are supported by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported
instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation — The
government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund
financial statements. Agency funds, included in the fiduciary fund financial statements, apply
the accrual basis of accounting but does not have a measurement focus. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which
they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Measurable means the amounts are
determinable. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues not considered available are recorded as
deferred revenues. Revenues susceptible to accrual are real property taxes collected within
sixty days after fiscal year end, fuel taxes, rents and concessions, interest and special
assessments. Licenses and permits revenues, franchise taxes, charges for current services, fines,
forfeitures, penalties and other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
they are not measurable until received in cash.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and
contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. There are
essentially two types of these revenues. For one type of revenues, monies must be expended
for a specific purpose or project and revenues are recognized to the extent of such
expenditures. Revenues of this type are deferred for monies received in advance of
expenditures and accrued for expenditures in advance of monies received. For the other type
of revenues, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of the expenditure. These
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CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the susceptible to accrual
criteria are met.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statement by type. Since by
definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to
address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the
government-wide statements.

Fund Types — The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund balances, revenues and expenditures/expenses. There are
certain  minimum criteria  (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined)
for the determination of major funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the
fund financial statement and detailed in the combining section.

The City has the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types

The focus of governmental fund measurement (in the fund financial statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.

The City’s governmental fund types are as follows:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. Itis
used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds — Special revenue funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds — Debt service funds are used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, debt principal, interest and
related costs.

Capital Projects Funds — Capital projects funds are used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities
(other than those financed by proprietary funds).
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Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting
principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The City
maintains four proprietary enterprise fund types as well as its discretely presented
component unit under the following criteria:

Enterprise Funds — Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises (a) where
the intent of the governing body is that the costs (i.e., expenses including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Fiduciary Funds
The City maintains the following fiduciary fund types:

Private-Purpose Trust Fund — The private-purpose trust fund is used to account
for resources held by the City for the benefit of parties outside the government.

Agency Funds — Agency funds are custodial in nature and are used to receive and
disburse funds for an entity/individual, which is not part of the City. Agency funds
function as a clearing account and do not measure results of operations.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s
policy to use restricted funds first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for governments as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). Pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued after November 30, 1989 are not applied in
the presentation of the financial statements of the proprietary fund types in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 34.
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Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

The City follows GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 21 and No. 34, and
GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Annual operating and project-length capital budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
GAAP except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year the
commitments are made.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
operating budget appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the general fund and in certain special revenue funds (in the fund financial statements).
Capital projects funds (in the fund financial statements) employ encumbrance accounting in
order to reserve for construction contracts that portion of the applicable capital projects
appropriation.

Encumbrances are recorded at the time purchase orders, construction contracts or other
contracts or commitments are awarded, except for contracts awarded contingent upon the
availability of nonbudgeted federal or state grant monies. Encumbrances outstanding at year
end are reported as reservations of fund balances (in the fund financial statements) and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year.

Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be demand and time deposits primarily with
various financial institutions in Hawaii, with fiscal agents, short-term investments with original
maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition, and imprest and change funds. Cash
on deposit with financial institutions is collateralized in accordance with State statutes.

Investments consist of investments in U.S. government securities, investments purchased under
agreements to resell to banks (repurchase agreements), time certificates of deposit and mutual
funds. Included are participating interest-earning investment contracts (repurchase agreements
and U.S. government securities), as well as nonparticipating interest-earning investment
contracts (time certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements). Both categories of
investments are stated at amortized cost.

The City values investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. This statement
provides fair value standards for investments in certain types of financial instruments. The
City’s investments fall into categories that can be valued by cost-based measures.
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Real Property Taxes

Real property taxes are assessed and billed annually. The City’s real property taxes, which are
levied on July 1 and billed on July 20 of each year are based on assessed valuations as of
January 1, and are due in two equal installments on the following August 20 and
February 20. Accordingly, real property taxes receivable at June 30 of each year are
delinquent and amounts that are not collected within sixty days after June 30 of each year are
reported as deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. A lien for real property taxes
attaches as of July 1 of each year.

Unbilled Receivables

Included in the enterprise fund — discretely presented component unit and enterprise fund —
proprietary fund type receivables at June 30, 2004, were unbilled water and sewer charges
(due to the use of cycle billings) in the amounts of $6.9 million and $9.3 miliion,
respectively.

Inventories of Parts, Materials and Supplies

Inventories of parts, materials and supplies are stated at weighted average cost, which
approximates fair value. The costs of inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventory of Real Estate Held for Sale

Real estate held for sale is stated at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value, with
cost being determined by the specific identification method. All estimated costs to the
anticipated date of disposition are considered in the determination of estimated net realizable
value. Costs include all costs directly related to the planning of improvements to be
constructed on the land, interest and other carrying charges. Interest on loans used to finance
development or construction activities is capitalized during the development period.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Infrastructure assets
acquired prior to fiscal year ended June 30, 1980 are reported in the capital assets. Capital
assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more for equipment and $100,000 for buildings, structures and infrastructure, and an
estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated and accepted capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value or appraised value at time of acceptance by City
Council. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful
life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs related to repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.
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Depreciation on all assets is provided for on the straight-line basis over the following estimated
useful lives:

Years
Infrastructure 8-75
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Transmission and distribution system 13-60
Equipment and machinery 5-25
Buses and other transit vehicles 7-12

Bond Issue Costs, Original Issue Discount or Premium and

Deferred Loss on Refundings

Bond issue costs are deferred and are amortized over the life of the respective issue on a
straight-line basis. Original issue discount or premium and deferred loss on refundings are
amortized using the effective interest method over the terms of the respective issues and are
added to or offset against the bonds payable in the statement of net assets.

Interfund and Interfund Transactions

Interfund receivables and payables are reported in each fund. Transfers of financial resources
between agencies and activities included in the same fund, which are recorded as revenues by
the transferee and expenditures or expenses by the transferor, have been eliminated.
Transactions that represent reimbursements to a fund for expenditures or expenses initially
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures or
expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures or expenses in the fund
reimbursed.

Transfers from the primary government include operating loss subsidies of $74.1 million to
the Public Transportation System and authorized transfers from funds receiving revenues to
funds that will expend those resources. Contributions to the capital accounts of enterprise
funds are reflected in the statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund net assets.

Net Assets

Net assets comprise the various net earnings (losses) from operating and nonoperating
revenues, expenses, transfers and contributed capital. Net assets are classified in the following
three components: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted for capital activity
and debt service; and unrestricted net assets. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt attributable to
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Debt related to unspent
proceeds or other restricted cash and investments at year-end are not included in the
calculation of the amount invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Restricted for capital
activity and debt service consists of net assets for which constraints are placed thereon by
external parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations and enabling
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legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates. Unrestricted net assets consist of all other
net assets not included in the above categories.

Retirement Plan Contributions

The City’s contribution to the Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Hawaii is based
upon actuarial computations and is comprised of the normal cost plus a level annual payment
required to amortize an unfunded actuarial accrued liability over the remaining period of 27
years from July 1, 2002. The City is required by State statute to fund the actuarially
determined pension contribution requirement annually.

Deferred Compensation Plan
All full-time employees of the City and its component unit are eligible to participate in the -
City and County of Honolulu’s Public Employees’ Deferred Compensation Program (“Plan”),
adopted pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits eligible employees
to defer a portion of their salary until future years by contributing to a fund managed by a
plan administrator. The deferred compensation amounts are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

A trust fund (annuity contract) was established to protect plan assets from claims of general
creditors and from diversion to any uses other than paying benefits to participants and
beneficiaries. Deferred compensation plan assets of $301 million are not reported in the
accompanying basic financial statements at June 30, 2004.

Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation when earned (or estimated to be earned) by
the employee. Vacation benefits accrue at a rate of one and three-quarters working days for
each month. Each employee is allowed to accumulate a maximum of 90 days of vacation as
of the end of the calendar year.

Sick leave accumulates at the rate of one and three-quarters working days for each month,
without limit. Sick leave is taken only in the event of illness and is not convertible to pay;
accordingly, sick leave is not accrued in the accompanying financial statements. Employees
who retire or leave government service in good standing with sixty or more unused sick leave
days are entitled to an additional service credit in the retirement system. At June 30, 2004,
accumulated sick leave amounted to $293 million.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership are accounted for as
capital leases. Other leases are operating leases. Capital leases are included in fixed assets
and, where appropriate, are amortized over the shorter of their estimated economic useful
lives or lease terms. The related capital lease obligations are included in long-term debt.
Operating leases are expended (or expensed) when the related liability is incurred.
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Enterprise Funds

The City maintains five enterprise funds consisting of the Public Transportation System
(“PTS”), the Solid Waste Special Fund, the Sewer Fund and the Housing Development Special
Fund, which are included in the proprietary fund type, and the Board of Water Supply, which
is a discretely presented component unit.

Information describing these enterprise funds, including significant accounting policies, is
described in Notes 11 and 15.

Deficit Balances

At June 30, 2004 the $137.9 million accumulated deficit in the Solid Waste Special Fund
resulted from deficits of H-POWER due to transfers to the general fund and due to operating
losses. It is anticipated that the City will continue to provide significant operating subsidies to
the H-POWER facility to finance operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses/expenditures, and
other financing sources and uses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3. This Statement requires certain
disclosures of investments that have fair values that are highly sensitive to changes in interest
rates. Deposit and investment policies related to the risks identified in this Statement should
also be disclosed. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after June 15, 2004. The City has not yet determined the effect this
Statement will have on its financial statements.

In November 2003, the GASB issued Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets and also clarifies
and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries. The provisions of this
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15,
2004. The City has not yet determined the effect this Statement will have on its financial
statements.

In May 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 44, Economic Condjtion Reporting: The
Statistical Section — an amendment of NCGA Statement 1. This Statement establishes and
modifies requirements related to the supplementary information presented in the statistical
section that accompanies the basic financial statements. The provisions of this Statement are
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effective for statistical sections prepared for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. The City
has not yet determined the effect this Statement will have on its financial statements.

In June 2004, the GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement establishes
standards for the measurement, recognition and display of other postretirement benefits
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures and required
supplementary information in the financial reports of state and local governmental employers.
The provisions of this Statement are effective for the City for periods beginning after
December 15, 2006. The City has not yet determined the effect this Statement will have on
its financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation

Certain prior year information have been presented in the supplementary fund financial
statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in financial position and
operations of these funds.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

On or before March 2, the Mayor submits to the City Council proposed operating and capital
budgets for the ensuing fiscal year commencing on July 1. The budgets are on a basis
consistent with GAAP except that encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the
year the commitments are made. After public hearings, and on or prior to June 15, the
budgets are legally enacted through passage of a budget ordinance by the City Council.

Formal budgetary integration is employed (i.e., annual operating budgets are legally adopted)
for the general fund and special revenue funds. Effective budgetary control for debt service,
trust and agency, and revolving funds is achieved through bond indentures, contractual
provisions and legislation. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for capital projects
because effective budgetary control is achieved through contractual provisions and project
oversight. Flexible budgeting (i.e., the relationship of costs to revenues) is employed for
enterprise funds.

Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year if not expended or encumbered, except that
appropriations for capital projects lapse six months after the end of the fiscal year if not at
least partially expended or encumbered. Certain federal and state grant funds are
automatically appropriated when received.

The Mayor is authorized to transfer appropriations between activities within a department. To
transfer appropriations between departments, the legal level of budgeting, amendments must
be made to the enacted budget ordinance. Only the Mayor may propose amendments to the
enacted budget ordinance.

56



CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2004

The financial statements aggregate budgetary information at the functional level. The legal
level of budgetary control (i.e., department level) is reported in the individual fund
statements.

The budget figures presented include all amendments to the enacted budget ordinances.
During the year, a supplementary appropriations ordinance was adopted. The overall effect of
this supplementary appropriations ordinance on the budget was not significant.

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet
and the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance of total
governmental funds and net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that, “long-term
liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.” Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s
governmental activities are not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly, are not
reported as fund liabilities. However, all current and long-term liabilities are reported in the
statement of net assets. The details of this $1.7 billion difference are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Long-term liabilities (see Note 8) $ (1,677,979)
Accrued interest payable and other (21,750)

$ (1,699,729)

The government fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net change in fund balances of total governmental funds and
change in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation states that, “Governmental funds report
capital outlays as expenditures. The statement of activities reports depreciation expense on
capital assets.” The details of this $77 million difference are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Capital outlays $ 143,792
Depreciation expense (66,758)
$ 77,034

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Proceeds from the issuance of long-term
debt are reported as providing current financial resources in the governmental funds, but are
reported as long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. Repayment of such
debt is reported as an expenditure for governmental funds but is reported as a reduction of
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debt in the government-wide financial statements.” The details of this $134 million difference
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Debt Issued:

General obligation bonds, net $ (537,978)

Tax-exempt commercial paper (89,242)

Notes payable a3
Total (627,233)

Principal Repayments:

General obligation bonds, net 338,282

Tax-exempt commercial paper 153,400

Other long-term debt 1,863
Total 493,545
Net adjustment $ (133,688)

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Some expenses reported in the statement
of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $12 million difference
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Compensated absences $ (1,412)
Claims and judgments (7,515)
Early incentive retirement payable 107
Other (2,742)
Net adjustment $ (11,562)

4. Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is used by all funds including the
component unit, except the workers’ compensation trust fund, which is held separately by the
independent plan administrator. Each of the funds’ and the component unit’s portion of this
pool are displayed in the accompanying financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City’s demand and time certificates of deposits, including those of its fiduciary funds and
component unit, are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at
June 30, 2004. Category 1 includes bank balances, which are fully insured or collateralized
with securities held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes bank
balances that are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent in the City’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and uncollateralized
cash.
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Bank balances and deposits at June 30, 2004 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Category Bank Carrying

1 2 3 —Balances = __Amount
Primary government  $ 230,964 $ - % 10 $230,974 $ 216,011
Component unit 82,328 - - 82,328 82,328
Total $ 313,292 $ - $ 10 $ 313,302 $ 298,339
Fiduciary funds $ 18,444 3§ - 3 - $ 18444 $ 18,444

Approximately $600,000 of total bank balances of deposits was covered by federal
depository instirance.

The City reports cash with fiscal agents as City cash until the agents use the cash to pay the
bond principal and interest amounts due. The fiscal agents typically pay the principal and
interest amounts due within two days after receiving the cash from the City. At June 30,
2004, $10,000 was classified as Category 3.

Investments

State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, obligations of other states, cities, and counties, mutual funds and bank repurchase
agreements. Investments in repurchase agreements are primarily U.S. government or federal
agency securities. To minimize credit risk, the City invests in U.S. government securities
through the book entry systems of the two largest commercial banks in the State. Book entry
securities are held in the banks’ custodial (i.e., safekeeping) accounts at a Federal Reserve
Bank.

The following tables present the City’s investments at June 30, 2004 and provide information
about the credit and market risks associated with the City’s investments. Category 1 includes
investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent in the
City’s name. Category 2 includes investments which are uninsured and unregistered, with
securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name. Category 3
includes investments which are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.
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Investment balances at June 30, 2004 were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Category Reported Fair
1 2 3 ~Amount __ Value
Primary Government:
Repurchase agreements $ 61,580 $ - 3% - $ 61,580 $ 61,580
Time certificates of deposit 10,100 - - 10,100 10,100
LL.S. government securities 63,048 - - 63,048 63,344
Total $ 134,728 % - 3 - $134728 $ 135024
Component Unit:
Mutual funds $ 17 3 - $ - 3 17 3 17
U.S. government securities 116,720 - - 116,720 116,720
Total $ 116,737 $ - $ - $116,737  $ 116,737
Fiduciary Funds:
Repurchase agreements $ 1,676 % - % - % 1,676 $ 1,676
U.S. government securities 7,264 - - 7,264 7,264
$ 8940 3§ - 8 - $ 8940 $ 8940

5. Receivables

Receivable balances, net of allowances for uncollectible accounts, at June 30, 2004 consisted
of the following (amount in thousands):

Governmental Business-Type

, Activiti Activiti
Real property taxes $ 8,265 $ -
Accounts 752 32,455
Special assessments 13,985 -
Notes 63,575 2,465
Intergovernmental 40,125 1,647
Interes - 1,558
CASE fees 3,300 -
Allowance for uncollectible accounts - (4,045)

$ 130,002 $ 34,080

The only receivables not expected to be collected within one year are the noncurrent portion
of the notes receivable, which are generally due to the City on various dates through 2055.
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6. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2004 (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government

Balance at Balance at
July 1, Retirements/ June 30,
2003 Additions Transfers 2004
Governmental Activities:
Depreciable Assets —
Infrastructure $ 734,771 $ 42,733 % (19) $ 777,485
Buildings and improvements 864,226 65,182 (3,386) 926,022
Equipment and machinery 217,423 14,724 (9,789) 222,358
Total depreciable assets 1,816,420 122,639 (13,194) 1,925,865
Less Accumufated Depreciation —
Infrastructure (375,402) (19,191) i (394,592)
Buildings and improvements (276,182) (31,434) 279 (307,337)
Equipment and machinery (129.835) (16,133) 7,224 (138,744)
Total accumulated
depreciation (781,419) (66,758) 7,504 (840,673)
1,035,001 55,881 (5,690) 1,085,192
Land 454,834 25,909 (3,040) 477,703
Construction Work in Progress 165,765 99511 (95,537) 169,739
Governmental activities —

capital assets, net $1.655600 $ 181,301 $ (104,267) $1,732.634
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Business-type Activities:
Depreciable Assets —
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery

Total depreciable assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation —
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery

Total accumulated
depreciation

Land
Construction Work in Progress

Business-type activities —
capital assets, net

Depreciable Assets —
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery

Total depreciable assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation -
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and machinery

Total accumulated
depreciation

Land
Construction Work in Progress

Component unit —
capital assets, net

June 30, 2004

Primary Government

Balance at Balance at
July 1, Retirements/ June 30,
2003 Additions Transfers 2004
$ 793,269 % 5,225 $ (4,104) $ 794,390

651,893 1,888 (456) 653,325
430,498 49,437 (12,596) 467,339
1,875,660 56,550 (17,156) _ 1,915,054

(68,586) (17,914) 1,339 (85,161)
(105,765) (17,782) 17 (123,530)

(283,236) (30,257) 12,475 (301,018)

(457,587) (65,953) 13,831 (509,709)
1,418,073 (9,403) (3,325) 1,405,345
105,480 16,395 (3,753) 118,122
186,553 98,828 (15,453) 269,928

$1,710,106 $ 105820 $ (22,531) $1,793,395

Component Unit

$ 979,914 $ 41,016 % (926) $1,020,004
117,752 4,130 121,882
169,196 10,639 (1,419) 178,416
1,266,862 55,785 (2,345) __1,320,302
(319,258) (23,727) 254 (342,731)
(28,388) (2,877) (31,265)
(84,983) (9,186) 1,284 (92,885)
(432,629) (35,790) 1,538 (466,881)
834,233 19,995 (807) 853,421
30,090 30,090
121,579 87,998 (53,821) 155,756

$ 985902 § 107,993
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Depreciation expense was charged as follows (amounts in thousands):

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 12,753
Public safety 22,730
Highways and streets 14,009
Health and human services 1,040

Culture-recreation

16,226

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $ 66,758

Business-type Activities:

Sewer $ 30,575
Solid waste 16,922
Housing 3,591

Public Transportation System

14,865

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $ 65,953

Component Unit:
Board of Water Supply ($877 of depreciation expense was capitalized to projects) $ 34,913

The component unit’s beginning balance of accumulated depreciation at July 1, 2003 reflects
an adjustment to decrease the amount previously reported by $6.1 million. The adjustment is
the result of a change in depreciation method, as described in Note 15.

7. Interfund Balances

The following is a summary of amounts due from and due to other funds at June 30, 2004
(amounts in thousands):

Due From Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 21,571 % 2,815
Highway Fund - 93
General Improvement Bond Fund 5,197 4,876
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 297 21,936
Fiduciary Funds 2,626 -
Enterprise Funds: '
Housing Development Special Fund - 1
Sewer Fund 4,885 217
Solid Waste Special Fund 139 4,777
$ 34,715 $ 34,715
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There are no interfund balances that are not expected to be repaid by June 30, 2005.

The following is a summary of amounts transferred from and transferred to other funds at
June 30, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

Transferred Transferred
From To
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 85,686 % 250,856
Highway Fund - 63,159
General Obligation Bond and
Interest Redemption Fund 165,914 -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 23,123 22,213
Enterprise Funds:
Housing Development Special Fund 8 -
Sewer Fund - 31,077
Solid Waste Special Fund 56,494 37,9921
Public Transportation System 74,071 -

$ 405,296 $ 405,296

The main purpose for these interfund transfers, as provided by ordinance, are for: the
recovery of central administrative expenses; debt service payments and recoveries through the
general fund; and reimbursement for capital contributions to the general fund.

There are no significant transfers that either do not occur on a routine basis or are inconsistent
with the fund making the transfer.
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8. Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities included in the governmental
activities, business-type activities, and the component unit during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2004 (amounts in thousands):

Balance at Balance at Amounts
Juiy 1, June 30, Due Within
2003 Additions Reductions 2004 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds $ 1,254,315 $ 521,194 $ 337,315 $ 1,438,194 $ 39,421
Tax-exempt commercial paper 128,100 89,242 153,400 63,942 63,942
Special assessment bonds
with government commitment 1,375 - 365 1,010 365
Notes payable to federal
and state governments 7,173 i3 350 6,836 361
Capital lease obligations (Note 12) 694 - 591 103 103
Instaliment purchase contracts 2,032 - 557 1,475 579
Compensated absences 74,091 24,049 22,637 75,503 3,837
Claims and judgments (Note 13) 59,370 27,743 20,228 66,885 17,600
Early incentive retirement payable 9,227 - 107 9,120 107
1,536,377 662,241 535,550 1,663,068 126,315
Add unamortized premium - 36,677 1,668 35,009 -
Less:
Unamortized discount (906) (222) (332) (796) -
Deferred ioss on refunding - {(19,671) (369) (19,302) -
Total $ 1,535471 $ 679,025 $ 536,517 $ 1,677,979 $ 126,315
Business-Type Activities:
Generat obligation bonds $ 385,264 $ 50,426 $ 81,459 $ 354,231 $ 35,469
Revenue bonds 704,020 - 1,095 702,925 1,140
Tax-exempt commercial paper - 10,858 - 10,858 10,858
Notes payable to state governments 85,494 . 3 5,617 79,880 5,756
Operating fee obligation (Note 11} 92,690 - 2,186 90,504 5,534
Estimated liability for landfill closure and
post closure care costs (Note 14) 15,587 - 315 15,272 316
1,283,055 61,287 90,672 1,253,670 59,073
Add unamortized premium - 3,547 110 3,437
Less:
Unamortized discount (26,226) (8) (1,792) (24,442) -
Deferred loss on refunding - (932) (19) (9213)
Total $ 1,256,829 $ 63,894 $ 88,971 $ 1,231,752 $ 59,073
Discretely Presented
Component Unit: )
Revenue bonds $ 119,270 $ 100,000 $ 2,090 $ 217,180 $ 1,135
Add unamortized premium - 4,968 143 4,825 -
Less:
Unamortized discount (580) - 21) (559) -
Deferred loss on refunding (765) - (255) (510) -
Total $ 117,925 $ 104,968 $ 1,957 $ 220,936 $ 1,135
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General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds for the construction of major capital facilities.
General obligation bonds in the governmental activities are direct obligations of the City for
which its full faith and credit are pledged. Debt service is paid from the debt service fund.
These bonds were issued during the fiscal years 1977 through 2004 in the original amount of
$2.4 billion, less discounts of $796,000 and adjusted for a premium of $35 million at
June 30, 2004 which are being amortized over the related term of the bonds. These bonds
bear interest at 1.18% to 8%, and mature serially through fiscal year 2029. General
obligation debt authorized but not yet issued amounted to $51 1 million at June 30, 2004.

General obligation bonds in the City’s business-type activities are expected to be paid from
their respective revenues. These instruments are also direct obligations of the City for which
its full faith and credit is pledged. These bonds were issued during the fiscal years 1991
through 2004 in the original amount of $936 million, less a discount of $300,000 and
adjusted for a premium of $3.4 million at June 30, 2004, which are being amortized over the
related term of the bonds. These bonds bear interest at 1.18% to 8%, and mature serially
through fiscal year 2029.

In April 2004, the City issued general obligation refunding bonds in the aggregate amount of
$321.6 million in three series: Series 2004A for $123 million, Series 2004B for
$192.9 million and Series 2004C for $5.7 million. The bonds bear interest at 2% to
5.25% and mature annually on July 1, 2005 through 2028. The Series 2004 A and Series
2004B bonds are subject to redemption, at the option of the City, in whole or in part in any
order of maturity on or after July 1, 2014. Series 2004C is not subject to redemption prior
to maturity. Proceeds from the bonds were used to advance refund certain outstanding
general obligations and certain general obligation tax-exempt commercial paper of the City.
All of the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has
been removed from the government-wide financial statements. The premium generated by
each issue will be amortized and credited to interest expense over the life of the related bonds.

The City advance refunded those certain outstanding general obligations to level overall debt
service requirements in future years. Series 2000A were refunded by Series 2004A
increasing debt service payments by $49 million with an economic loss of $13.2 million.
Series 2000B were refunded by Series 2004C increasing debt service payments by $18,000
with an economic gain of $85,000. The Series 2004B advance refunded various bonds
decreasing debt service payments by $27.9 million at an economic gain of $7.5 million.

Short-term general obligation tax-exempt commercial paper in a maximum aggregate principal
amount not to exceed $150 million outstanding at any time was authorized for issuance by
the City, in accordance with Ordinance 01-28, during June 2001, to refinance long-term
bonds. The $74.8 million commercial paper bear interest at variable rates (0.9% to 1.2% at
June 30, 2004) with varying maturities to a maximum of 270 days from the respective date
of issue, and are not subject to redemption prior to maturity. In connection with the issuance,
the City entered into an irrevocable letter of credit agreement in which the City may borrow
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up to $150 million for payment of principal and up to $13.3 million for payment of interest.
There were no drawings on the letter of credit during fiscal 2004.

Interest on the Series 2001C variable-rate general obligation bonds was set at 1.18% until
December 4, 2004, after which the interest resets weekly at prevailing rates.

Revenue Bonds

Water system revenue bonds in the City’s component unit were issued during fiscal years
2001, 2002 and 2004 in the original amount of $221 million. Water system revenue bonds
are subject to redemption on and after specified dates prior to maturity at the option of the
Board at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest. The
bonds bear interest at variable rates (1.2% auction rate to 5% at June 30, 2004) and mature
serially through July 1, 2033. Proceeds from the bonds were primarily used to fund the
acquisition of a water reclamation facility, to fund capital improvement projects and to retire
outstanding bonds. The revenue bonds are collateralized by the component unit’s revenues.

Wastewater system revenue bonds in the City’s business-type activities were issued during fiscal
years 1999 through 2003, in the original amount totaling $706 million, less a discount
($24.1 million at June 30, 2004, which is being amortized over the related term of the
bond). The bonds are subject to redem